City Council Meeting
Agenda of Business
September 27, 2021
The Lord's Prayer
Pledge of Allegiance to the flag

A.

Roll call

B.

Approval of minutes dated September 13, 2021

C.

Communications, reports, and resolutions
1. Resolution No. 2021-99 - Introduced by Council - A Resolution declaring
"Beggar's Night"/"Trick or Treat" for the City of Zanesville. (Third Reading)

D.

Proposed ordinances
1. Ordinance No. 2021-10S-lntroduced by Council - An Ordinance to Amend
Chapter 1137 of the City of Zanesville's Planning and Zoning Code. (First
Reading)
2. Ordinance No. 2021-110-lntroduced by Council-An Ordinance to amend
and revise the Zoning Map and make permanent zoning in the City of
Zanesville, Ohio as herein provided . (First Reading)
3. Ordinance No. 2021-111-lntroduced by Council-An Ordinance authorizing
the Community Development Director to waive Planning and Zoning Permit
fees for the Muskingum Soil and Water Conservation District, and declaring
an emergency. (Emergency or First Reading)
4. Ordinance No. 2021-112 - Introduced by Council-An Ordinance
authorizing the Community Development Director to submit an application for
funding through to the Urban Canopy Restoration Grant Program . (First
Reading)
5. Ordinance No. 2021-113 - Introduced by Council-An Ordinance allowing a
moral claim . (First Reading)

E.

Ordinances for action
1. Ordinance No. 2021-102-lntroduced by Council-An Ordinance authorizing
the Mayor to add Traffic Signal Supervisor/Programmer position to unaffiliated
pay ordinance. (Second Reading)

2. Ordinance No. 2021-106 - Introduced by Council -An Ordinance authorizing
the proper city official to enter into an agreement with Zanesville City Schools.
( Second Reading)
3. Ordinance No. 2021-107 - Introduced by Council -An Ordinance approving a
Labor Agreement with the Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc.
(Police Secretaries and Records Clerks) and declaring an emergency.
(Emergency or Second Reading)(Amendment to attachment)
4. Ordinance No. 2021-108 -An Ordinance ratifying the Memorandum of

Understanding with Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc. (Police
Secretaries and Records Clerks) regarding lump sum signing bonus, and
declaring an emergency. (Emergency or Second Reading)
5. Ordinance No. 2021-98 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance authorizing
contracts for Administration, Network, Medical Management, Consultation, and
Stop Loss Insurance Services related to the City's Employee Health Plan.
(Third Reading)
F.

Traffic orders
No Traffic Orders were filed for this meeting.

G.

Miscellaneous and unfinished business

H.

Private petitions and communications
No Non-agenda item petitions were filed

The next regular meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, October 12, 2021.
This meeting is an open meeting and the public is invited to attend in person
following the CDC recommendations. You can join by telephonic means or to join
by phone below or see the coz.org website for other options to view the meeting:
+1-415-655-0001 U.S. Toll
1-844-621-3956 United States Toll Free
Access Code: 126 750 8098
Join from a video conferencing system or application. Open up a web browser
and type: zanesvillecity.webex.com Then type in the meeting number where it
says Join Meeting 126 750 8098

ZANESVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2021
Public Hearing
Mr. Vincent called the Public Hearing to order at 6:11 p.m. This public hearing is to amend

Chapter 1129.07, Special and Temporary Uses ofthe City of Zanesville Codified Ordinances.
Present at the three hearings were the following individuals: Council President Daniel M.
Vincent, Councilmembers Todd Ware, Jan Bradshaw, Ann Gildow, Joey Osborn, Steven
Foreman, Rob Sharrer, Mark Baker, and Andy Roberts. Community Development Director
Matthew Schley, and Susan Culbertson, Clerk of Council. Bill Arnett, Councilperson Sandy
Gentry, and City Law Director David Tarbert attended by Internet online virtual meeting
(WebEx).

Mr. Vincent: With that I will turn this over to Matthew Schley, Community Development
Director, so he can guide us through it.
Matthew Schley: Yes, thank you. This Code change just to get it out there directly relates to the
sale of Medical Marijuana within the City of Zanesville. I will start with this does not alter or
supersede any state laws, ordinances, statues or anything of that nature. All this does is allow
for the City of Zanesville in a very limited capacity on case-by-case basis to allow for the
operation of a medical marijuana dispensary inside the city limits. Specifically, those two zoning
districts it would be allowed in would be in the C3 and C4 districts. Prior to operation, as this
code outlines, it needs a special use permit. The process for obtaining a special use permit is
you have to go through the Board of Zoning Appeals, and they review it on a set of criteria such
as neighborhood character, feasibility, public services, etc.
Medical Marijuana typically has a bad name because of the word marijuana, right? In the state
of Ohio for clarification you have to obtain a medical marijuana card in order to purchase
medical marijuana. In order to do that there are only 25 qualifying medical conditions. To name
a few: Cancer, Crohn's Disease, Glaucoma, Terminal illness, Tourette's, and things of that
nature that are very nasty and debilitating diseases for people.
You also need to get evaluated by a certified medical professional that is certified by the State
of Ohio Board. So, this isn't something that somebody can go in off the streets. This is not for
recreational use. I received a comment earlier this week that they felt this was about
recreational use. It is not. You will still get arrested if you sell it or are using marijuana without
one of these prescription cards. What this does is we have a large number or percentage of our
population who uses medical marijuana as a prescription in Zanesville and right now they are
driving to places like Newark and Coshocton. They are driving like 25 or 30 or sometimes 40
minutes depending on where they live just to get their medicine and get back. With people with
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these kinds of debilitating diseases that could be a hardship. So, what this will do is it will allow
them to stay local, keep the tax dollars local, and ultimately get the help that they need. So, are
there any questions?
Mr. Vincent: With that Mr. Schley, I think Mr. Roberts had put together a map and there are
very limited areas where this can fit, is that something we have here?
Matthew Schley: I do not have that personally. Mr. Roberts did prepare that, but I believe it was
sent to Miss Culbertson. I have seen it. I have discussed it with Andy on a number of occasions.
It is incredibly limited. You are talking main arterial streets, you are talking of one little spot
downtown, Linden and Maple and those kinds of areas that are highly commercialized already.
Nowhere near schools obviously. So, the state law prohibits it within I believe 500 feet of all
schools, all parks, playgrounds, and religious institutions.
The Clerk had a printout of the mapping Mr. Vincent referred to and it was passed around.
Mr. Sharrer: Matt, my question has to do with, I know in my profession in title, there are
exceptions for medical marijuana for anyone dealing in marijuana for any reason. Banking
exceptions and things like that, how has that been recognized or reconciled with tax dollars and
that kind of thing?
Matthew Schley: So, medical marijuana facilities are taxed at a higher rate than other normal
businesses. They also have a very hefty application fee to the state of Ohio. I don't get into the
intricacies of how businesses are run . I typically look at maps and understand what it is more or
less than how it is run. So, when you look at zoning, I don't look at how somebody runs their
business. I look at what their business is and how it impacts the community, but I do know they
are taxed at a higher bracket, and I do know there is a hefty application fee for each dispensary.
Mr. Baker: Matt, I know you listed about 25 medical conditions. Is that right?
Matthew Schley: Yes.
Mark Baker: If you could apply for a permit. What would you say is the least invasive, least
serious, of those so I get some idea of what the sort of scope is? I mean we have glaucoma,
which is serious, but
Mr. Vincent: I think anxiety is on there.

Matthew Schley: Well, anxiety hasn't actually formally been added to the list yet.
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Mr. Vincent: It has not been? I am sorry.

Matthew Schley: It is not. It has been proposed, but right now there are only 25, I would say I
have a pretty substantial list. I will say Crohn's Disease. I mean that is serious in itself, but I
would say that is probably the least traumatic and there is also Sickle Cell Anemia is on there
too, but that is also fairly traumatic as well.
Mark Baker: And all of these require medical professionals with all the rigors ofthe medical
community to designate a need obviously.
Matthew Schley: Absolutely, yes. You cannot receive one of these cards. The city doesn't give
those out. That is all done through the state. That is how they handle it, we do not. In order to
get one of these cards you have to have one of the qualifying medical conditions and then a
prescription from a doctor.
Mark Baker: Okay, and one more question. I know these are highly regulated by both us and
the state of Ohio. If it would ever become necessary to abrogate one of the permits for
whatever reason, what would the process of that be? Who does that? How long would it take?
Is there a due process procedure involved?
Matthew Schley: It would depend on which permit you are getting rid of I suppose. If I
understand your question correctly, if it was a city permit the process is just as any other zoning
permit that we currently have. So, there is a condition placed on it and there is a violation of
that condition, my office has the ability to do an inspection and revoke that permit if within 14
days the facility is not compliant.
Mark Baker: So, it is that fast.
Matthew Schley: It is fairly quick.
Mark Baker: Okay. Alright, thanks.
Matthew Schley: I would also like to point out that the Community Development Committee
did hear this code and they did support it and the Planning Commission recommended it
unanimously.
Todd Ware: Is PTSD on there?
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Matthew Schley: Yes.
Mrs. Osborn: Matt, have there, other communities that have gone forward with this do you
know is there a higher incident of moving violations or anything like that?
Matthew Schley: Personal experience, I worked for a township for a while that had two
dispensaries and we had zero incidences resulting from the dispensaries. I should point out
those dispensaries sat right next to a bar or a tavern . There were zero incidences reported by
our police chief at the time.
Mark Baker: Over what period of time was that?
Matthew Schley: I was there for a year and a half. I should point out that the medical marijuana
is not intended to create a buzz or a high . It is intended to be use cannabinoid inside of it that
are used to treat various ailment and reduce anxiety, stress, pain, and things of that nature. It is
a common alternative to narcotic pain killers.
Mrs. Osborn : So, are you able to drive on it?
Matthew Schley: No, you would still be under the influence. The OVI laws would say you are
under the influence.
Mrs. Osborn : Alright.
Matthew Schley: But that is not the intention . If I had one of these conditions I don't think I
would be driving.
Mr. Vincent: It does provide help and relief for many people. So, I just sent the list of 25 out to
people. Is there anything else from Council? You had people oppose this?
Matthew Schley: A single individual.
Mr. Vincent : That is the one where you explained they thought it was for recreational use.
Matthew Schley: I attempted to explain it and I did not receive a response or email from the
individual. Overall, I do look at Facebook and Zanesville Viral Media didn't pick up on this up
and I sometimes post to those comments, and I saw one negative comment and the people in
there of the hundreds basically said they gave the education on what this is and typically this
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stuff is given to you in like the gummy or a drop form. It is up to the person. We received no
other comments and no response from my explanation to this individual.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you, sir. Is there anything else from Council? Is there anyone here to speak
for or against? Sandy is on there. Is anyone on the line here to speak for or against this? Is
anyone to speak for or against this on the line? Are they muted or unmuted?
IT Director Lisa Hittle: They are unmuted, but they will need to unmute themselves.
Mr. Vincent: So, they have to unmute themselves. Okay if you have something you want to say
you need to unmute yourself on your app on your computer. Is there anyone to speak for or
against? Okay, there will still be an opportunity then during the Council meeting if someone
wants to submit an application to speak when this comes before Council, fifteen minutes
before 7:00 p.m. tonight is the deadline to get that submitted. Okay, with that if nothing else
we will call this public hearing to a close and we will go right into our second public hearing for
this evening.

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Zanesville City Council

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Public Hearing
Mr. Vincent called a public hearing to order, and it was held to amend and revise the Zoning
Map and make permanent zoning in the City of Zanesville, Ohio from 1-1 Industrial District to
A&E Agriculture and Estate District for parcels 83-28-01-01-000, 83-29-01-20-000, 83-29-01-21-

000, and 83-29-01-17-000 being held at 6:20 p.m. on September 13, 2021.
Mr. Vincent: With that we will turn this over to Matthew Schley.
Matthew Schley: This is a fairly straight forward request. These are properties the city
purchased. Three of the properties, the city purchase through the NRAC (Natural Resource
Assistance Council) for a Clean Ohio grant for the purpose of building a passive recreation park
on the properties. So, the goal with that was to preserve the properties for land Conservancy
and that's what this district predominantly does. The other property that's in the middle is
currently an undeveloped former industrial site.
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A&E is also used predominantly as a placeholder so the idea behind it would be is to spur
redevelopment. If you rezone all the properties along the river front to agriculture and estate,
you can essentially allow a resetting of the zoning on that property per se. This is in line with
our Comprehensive Plan. Our Comprehensive Plan talks about preserving and protecting our
riverfront and providing additional economic opportunities for people on riverfronts. So, in line
with this we are going away from industrial zoning along the riverfronts to Agriculture and
Estate. You will be seeing a few more of these throughout the next year or so as we go through
and systematically take a look at our river fronts.
A brief history planning, because I'm a nerd like that, back in the industrial revolution, it was
thought that you wanted to have all your industrial uses on your rivers, because that's how they
got power, it's how they cooled things, it's how they manufactured things. Well, the problem is
they're not doing it that way anymore. We have all this wonderful river front, it's our number
one asset and we've kind of let it sit there as industrial land and at times it's been taken
advantage of. Well, the Mayor and I have spoken multiple times and we believe that the best
way forward is for us to protect it through this zoning classification for future generations to
enjoy.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you Mr. Schley. The one piece of property the city does not own. That's
been inactive for, do we know how long? There's nothing that has been in there?
Mr. Schley: For six or seven years. The building was torn down about 2 years ago, but prior to
that, the building was dilapidated and not being used. So, I believe it was like 2014 was the last
record I had on it actually being operational.
Mr. Vincent: Okay, that was in 2014 you said?
Matthew Schley: Yes, and they tore the building down about 2 years ago.
Mr. Vincent: So, and also add to your list of industry along the rivers, besides power and cooling
and all that stuff. Sadly, waste and all that stuff went into the river?
Matthew Schley: Yeah, it was previously a dilapidated trucking terminal.
Mr. Vincent: And I was thinking this property, just saying general industrial pumped stuff into
the river.
Matthew Schley: Absolutely.
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Mr. Vincent: Okay. Thank you . Does Council have any questions?
Mr. Vincent: Great. We'll see if anyone wants to speak for or against this that is on line and with
that if anyone is on WebEx right now and wants to speak for or against this, please unmute
your mic and introduce yourself. Is there anyone to speak for or against this? nmute if you'd like
to speak. Last call is there anyone to speak for or against this? Last call for Council? Does
Council have anything? Okay let's call this public hearing to a close.

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Zanesville City Council
Public Hearing

Mr. Vincent called the public hearing to order for the acceptance of the final plat for the Kearns
Farm Estate Subdivision located in the Sixth Ward of the City of Zanesville, Ohio at 6:20 p.m. on
September 13, 2021.
Matthew Schley: Thank you . So, this subdivision plat and just for reference anytime you split a
parcel after the fifth split off of a parent parcel the city code requires a subdivision plat. So, in
this instance this parcel has been split five times and now we are at the sixth split which
requires a plat. This is a fragmented parcel. Northpointe Drive runs directly through the center
of it. This parcel has previously seen development with the Duke and Duchess at the corner of

SR 146 and Northpointe, Bayer Heritage Credit Union, the Northpointe Surgery Center, so it has
seen some development. It has seen some good things come out of this. They are looking to
split it along the road lines. There is going to be an additional sixth parcel included in it. There is
not much to say. This is not something where there are new roads. There are no new roads
begin built. The only thing that is going to be changing is in order to alleviate any traffic issues
on Kearns Drive on the northern side of Northpointe which will become right in and right out
once development occurs. That is because having a full access point so close to an intersection
like the intersection of Northpointe and SR 146 is dangerous. To prevent any accidents that
could happen, the Planning Commission approved the final plat with the condition that Kearns
Drive become right in and right out only at the northern portion of Northpointe. So, it has all
the utilities existing. All access will be from pre-determined curb cuts and access points. So, it is
a pretty simply subdivision plat for us.
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Mr. Vincent: ls there anything from Council?
Mr. Sharrer: That is what I was going to ask. Matt are the pre-determined curb cuts and access
roads are we going back, and I know we've kind of allowed some of the businesses like
Northpointe Surgical Center and that to do away with not having the access road and we have
granted them some left access and right access and different things. Until there was further
development. Are those going to be, I don't want to say, corrected; but are those going to be
enforced now?
Matthew Schley: Yes, it will be corrected with this subdivision plat. Obviously, until the access
road comes in, we will have to work with Northpointe Surgical Center. I believe it is called the
Oaks, the assisted living facility, so they have a full access point on Northpointe Drive and
directly across from them is another full access point where Bayer Heritage ties in. So, you will
see as there is a lot between the surgical center and Bayer Heritage and as that is developed
you will see that access road come in and then that full access goes away. How Northpointe
was designed is there were predetermined access points along the road and then we would be
allowed at our discretion to add any right in and right out. So, the surgery center could still have
a right in and right out once full access is established, but on the plat you actually see a
reciprocal access agreement or easement laid out throughout the entire area. So, that is the
primary way that these properties will gain access.
Mr. Sharrer: Thank you.
Mrs. Osborn: Is the land that you are talking about is it all zoned commercial?
Matthew Schley: Yes. All of Northpointe Drive is zoned C-4 Highway Commercial.
Mr. Vincent: Is there anything else from Council? With that, Mr. Schley, you may have said this
and I am sorry I didn't catch it. The access road there in front of the surgery center and the
credit union.
Mr. Schley: It is a private access point.

Mr. Vincent: Will there be an access road?
Matthew Schley: Yes.
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Mr. Vincent: That will be developed at some point when additional property goes in.
Matthew Schley: Yes.
Mr. Vincent: So further on up from the credit union?
Matthew Schley: Yes, so typically when Mr. Saunders and I and both of our staffs get together,
and we review a plan. So, for example, if you take a look at how Bayer Heritage developed you
notice they took their access road directly to the property line. We can't make them develop
another property, but we can as part oftheir plan review the process to say this is where access
is and you have to bring your road to this point and be done from there. So, that is something
we foresee in the future happening as these properties sell and per the real estate agent there
is a lot of interest in these properties currently.
Mr. Vincent: The access road then is to limit how many entry points there are on Northpointe
for public safety, so we do not having a driveway every so many feet.
Matthew Schley: Yes, absolutely. So, this is as Chip (Saunders) and I have discussed along with
Mr. (Scott) Brown and the Mayor, this is kind of fixing the mistakes of the past. Had Maple
Avenue been developed now, or a similar process would have taken place. It is just the easiest
way to get cars off the main drag and get them onto access roads where they need to go and
that alleviates traffic all the way through the entire section of road. So, we foresee this to be a
very successful development in the future.
Mr. Vincent: A constituent just asked about this three hours ago. Is there room at Bayer with
the hill coming down, that was their concern? As I told them an access road will be going in
there.
Matthew Schley: Yes, I believe their access road actually has part of their parking lot. So, I have
to pull the plans up, but I believe they built parking on each side ofthe access road and made it
wide enough to connect in.
Mr. Vincent: The access road will be parallel to Northpointe and that needs to go through the

front of their property?
Matthew Schley: Yes
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Mr. Vincent: Alright} that will be interesting to see how that pulls off. I need to drive by it so I
can see what they are really asking about.
Matthew Schley: Yeah, I would have to look at it myself too. I believe that the plans that I have
showing the access road being built from the full cut into the property.
Mr. Vincent: My memory is it is like a big hill coming out of the parking lot. They will have to put
a retaining wall in there.
Matthew Schley: Yes, there is a retaining wall and I believe the access road technically runs
through their parking lot. So, I will take a look.
Mr. Vincent: Is there anything else from Council? Do we have anyone on the line? Do we need
to unmute? Do we have anyone to speak for or against this? If so, you need to unmute yourself.
Is there anyone to speak for or against this? Last call, is there anyone to speak for or against
this? I say the answer is no. With that} is there anything else from Council? Okay, we are good
to go, and we will call this public hearing to a close and we will be here at 7:00 p.m. for Council.

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Zanesville City Council

ZANESVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING - MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2021

The Zanesville City Council met in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Monday,
September 13, 2021 in the City Council Chambers, 401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio.
Mr. Vincent led those present in the Lord's Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
The following members of Council answered roll call in person: Mr. Roberts} Mr. Sharrer, Mr.
Baker, Mr. Ware} Miss Bradshaw, Ms. Gildow, Mrs. Osborn, Mr. Foreman, and Mr. Vincent.
Mr. Vincent: Mrs. Gentry is with us online and she is able to listen in, but law does not allowed
to vote remotely anymore since that provision for the pandemic has been removed. Mrs.
Gentry attended by live two-way Internet means (Web Ex) for this meeting.
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Mr. Roberts moved to excuse Mrs. Gentry, and it was seconded by Mr. Sharrer due to the fact
Mrs. Gentry was unable to attend in person. A voice vote was taken with all present being in
favor. None were opposed . Motion carries. She stands excused.

APPROVAL Of MINUTES OF AUGUST 23, 2021
Mr. Roberts moved to accept the written minutes of August 23, 2021, seconded by Mrs.
Osborn . A voice vote was taken with all being in favor. Motion carried. Mrs. Gentry was
considered absent.

COMMUNICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RESOLUTIONS
Resolution No. 2021-9~ntroduced by Council-A Resolution declaring "Beggar's Night" /"Trick
or Treat" for the City of Zanesville .
Mr. Sharrer moved for second reading, seconded by Miss Bradshaw.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion?
Mayor Mason: Mr. President, I want you to know that in anticipation of this sometime passing I
did hedge my funds to buy some candy for beggar's night. (Laughter broke out)
Mr. Vincent: Is there anything else from Council or the Administration? Okay, we are at second
reading so all in favor of second reading signify by saying aye. Those opposed nay.
All were in favor. None were opposed. Motion carries.
Resolution No. 2021-100-lntroduced by Council-A Resolution accepting the amounts and rates
as determined by the Budget Commission, authorizing the necessary tax levies, certifying them
to the County Auditor, and declaring an emergency.
Mr. Roberts moved to waive the readings and it was seconded by Miss Bradshaw.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion on waiving? Hearing none, we will have roll call vote for
waiving of the readings.
Roll call vote for waiving of the readings.
8Ayes
O Nays
1 Absent
Mrs. Gentry
Motion carries.
Miss Bradshaw moved for passage, seconded by Ms. Gildow.
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Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, we will have roll call vote for passage.
Roll call vote for passage.
8Ayes
0Nays
1 Absent
Mrs. Gentry
Motion carries. Resolution is passed.
PROPOSED ORDINANCES

Ordinance No. 2021-101-lntroduced by Council-An Ordinance repealing Ordinance 2021-78,
and further authorizing the Public Service Director to advertise for bids and enter into a
contract with the lowest and best bidder for the Mitchell Tank 3 Project.
Mr. Roberts moved to waive the readings and it was seconded by Mr. Sharrer.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion on waiving?
Mr. Roberts: This was discussed at length at the Public Service Committee meeting earlier
tonight and a recommendation came from that committee to waive the readings on this
ordinance.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you, sir. Is there anything else on waiving? Let's have roll call vote for
waiving of the readings.
Roll call vote for waiving of the readings.
8Ayes
0 Nays
1 Absent
Mrs. Gentry
Motion carries.
Miss Bradshaw moved for passage, seconded by Ms. Gildow.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Let's have roll call vote for passage.
Roll call vote for passage.
8 Ayes
0 Nays
Mrs. Gentry
1 Absent
Motion carries. Ordinance is passed.
Ordinance No. 2021-102-lntroduced by Council-An Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to add
Traffic Signal Supervisor/Programmer position to unaffiliated pay ordinance.
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Miss Bradshaw moved for first reading, seconded by Mr. Ware.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, all in favor of first reading signify by saying
aye.
All were in favor. None were opposed.
Motion carries.
Ordinance No. 2021-103-lntroduced by Council-An Ordinance authorizing the proper city
official to enter into a professional contract with AECOM for the final design and bidding of the
R-6 and R-8 thru R-11 Combined Sewer Overflow Basin Sewer Separation and declaring an
emergency.

Mr. Roberts moved to waive the readings and it was seconded by Mr. Sharrer.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion on waiving? Hearing none let's go ahead and have roll call
vote for waiving of the readings.

Roll call vote for waiving of the readings.
8Ayes
0 Nays
1 Absent
Mrs. Gentry
Motion carries.
Miss Bradshaw moved for passage, seconded by Ms. Gildow.
Roll call vote for passage.
8 Ayes
0 Nays
1 Absent
Mrs. Gentry
Motion carries. Ordinance is passed.
Ordinance No. 2021-104- Introduced by Council - An Ordinance amending Ordinance 2021-34,
and authorizing the Mayor to apply for an Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDA) Loan for
multiple water projects and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of materials
for the construction of said projects, and declaring an emergency.

Mr. Roberts moved to waive the readings and it was seconded by Mr. Ware.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion on waiving? Hearing none, we will have roll call vote for
waiving of the readings.
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Roll call vote for waiving of the readings.
8 Ayes
0 Nays
1 Absent
Mrs. Gentry
Motion carries.
Miss Bradshaw moved for passage, seconded by Mr. Sharrer.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, we will have roll call vote for passage.
Roll call vote for passage.
8Ayes
0 Nays
1 Absent
Mrs. Gentry
Motion carries. Ordinance is passed.
Ordinance No. 2021-105 - Introduced by Council -An Ordinance amending Ordinance No.
2021-35 and authorizing the Mayor to advertise for bids and enter into a contract with lowest
and best bidder for the water line replacement project for Pine Street, and declaring an
emergency.
Mr. Sharrer moved to waive the readings and it was seconded by Mr. Ware.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing no discussion, we will have roll call vote for
waiving of the readings.
Roll call vote for waiving of the readings.
8Ayes
0 Nays
1 Absent
Mrs. Gentry
Motion carries.
Miss Bradshaw moved for passage, seconded by Mr. Ware.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, we will have roll call vote for passage.
Roll call vote for passage.
8Ayes
0 Nays
1 Absent
Mrs. Gentry
Motion carries. Ordinance is passed.

Ordinance No. 2021-106- Introduced by Council -An Ordinance authorizing the proper city
official to enter into an agreement with Zanesville City Schools.
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Miss Bradshaw moved for first reading, seconded by Mrs. Osborn.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, all in favor of first reading signify by saying
aye. Those opposed nay.
All were in favor. None were opposed.
Motion carries.
Ordinance No. 2021-107 - Introduced by Council -An Ordinance approving a Labor Agreement
with the Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc. (Police Secretaries and Records
Clerks) and declaring an emergency.

Mr. Roberts moved for first reading, seconded by Mr. Sharrer.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion?
Mr. Robert: Mr. President, I would like to make the following amendments:
On Page 27, Section 22.2
Section 22.2 Automatic Pay Increments
Pay increments changing 2015 to 2022.
The second sentence second line Step increments in it previously read 2016-2017
and it should read 2022-2023.
B. The first line changing 2015 to 2022. The second line the second sentence change
2016 to 2022 and 2017 to 2023.

A.

It was seconded by Mr. Sharrer.
Mr. Vincent: A motion for those amendments and seconded by Mr. Sharrer. All in favor of those
amendments signify by saying aye. Those opposed nay. Motion carries. We are now at
Ordinance No. 2021-107 as amended.
Mr. Roberts moved for first reading as amended and seconded by Mr. Sharrer. Is there any
discussion? Are we okay on the timeline on this?
The Clerk mentioned it was listed as an emergency.
Mr. Roberts: We are requesting we have first reading on this.
Mr. Vincent: You are requesting first reading? Okay. Is there any other discussion? All in favor
of first reading signify by saying aye.
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All were in favor. None were opposed.
Motion carries. Mrs. Gentry was absent.
Ordinance No. 2021-108 - An Ordinance ratifying the Memorandum of Understanding with
Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc. (Police Secretaries and Records Clerks)
regarding lump sum signing bonus and declaring an emergency.

Mr. Roberts moved for first reading, seconded by Mr. Baker.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, all in favor offirst reading signify by saying
aye. Those opposed nay.
All were in favor. None were opposed.
Motion carries. Mrs. Gentry was absent.
ORDINANCES FOR ACTION

Ordinance No. 2021-98- Introduced by Council -An Ordinance authorizing contracts for
Administration, Network, Medical Management, Consultation, and Stop Loss Insurance Services
related to the City's Employee Health Plan.
Miss Bradshaw moved for second reading, seconded by Mr. Baker.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, all in favor of second reading signify by
saying aye.
All were in favor. None were opposed.
Motion carries.
Ordinance No. 2021-89-lntroduced by Council-An Ordinance to amend and revise the zoning
map and make permanent zoning in the City of Zanesville, Ohio as herein provided.
Mr. Baker moved for third reading and passage, seconded by Miss Bradshaw.
Mr. Vincent: ls there any discussion? Hearing none, we will have roll call vote for passage.
Roll call vote for passage.
8Ayes
O Nays
1 Absent
Sandy Gentry
Motion carries. Ordinance is passed.
Ordinance No. 2021-90 -_Introduced by Council -An Ordinance for the acceptance of the final
plat for the Kearns Farm Estate Subdivision in the City of Zanesville, Ohio as herein provided.
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Miss Bradshaw moved for third reading and passage, seconded by Mr. Baker.
Mr. Vincent: ls there any discussion? Hearing none, we will have roll call vote for passage.
Roll call vote for passage.
8Ayes
O Nays
1 Absent
Sandy Gentry
Motion carries. Ordinance is passed.
Ordinance No. 2021-91 Amended - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance amending Chapter
1129.07 Special and Temporary Uses ofthe City of Zanesville Codified Ordinances.

Miss Bradshaw moved for third reading and passage, seconded by Mr. Baker.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? We do have a speaker on this. He is not here? Okay we
will see if he is on the line. I do have a petition filed by Mr. Gene Tahyi of 2875 Pinkerton Lane.
He is here to speak against this so with that Mr. Tahyi if you are on the line if you could unmute .
Caller 3 is that still Mr. Arnett? Mr. Tahyi are you on the line sir? I will ask one more time, Mr.
Tahyi are you caller 3? If you could unmute yourself.
Mr. Vincent asked Lisa Hittle if it was still showing muted.
Lisa Hittle responded it is unmuted.
Mr. Vincent: Okay, alright. Mr. Tahyi spoke at a couple of meetings back with his concerns I
believe with his field of work with substance abuse and sorry he is not here. So hopefully he is
okay.
Petition to speak on Ordinance 2021-91 Mr. Gene Tahyi speaking against this ordinance.
Mr. Tahyi was not present to speak.
Mr. Vincent: Is there anything else from Council or the Administration on this? We will have roll
call vote.
Roll call vote for passage.
8Ayes
0 Nays
Sandy Gentry
1 Absent
Motion carries . Ordinance is passed.
TRAFFIC ORDERS
No Traffic Orders were filed for this meeting.
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MISCELLANEOUS AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Mayor Mason: Thank you, Mr. President. I would like to thank City Council as we wrapped up
Labor Day weekend with the Rhythm and Blues Festival and it was a success. We had about
2,000 people over an eight-hour period. We had some great music, and a lot of people were
seeing each other for the first time still. So, thank you for sponsoring and supporting on it.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you, Mayor. Thanks to the Community Development and to all our sponsors
to pull this off. Once again, excellent work. Is there anything else from the administration?
Mr. Sharrer: Mr. President, I would just like to let our esteemed collogue at the other end of the
table know I would like to wish her a Happy Birthday from yesterday and I believe there may
even be some singers here in the audience that would like to sing Happy Birthday. They then
proceeded to sign Happy Birthday to Ann Gildow.
Applause upon the completion of the song.
Ms. Gildow: Thank you one and all. It is good this meeting is drawing to a close here. This just
went down the tubes. (laughter broke out) Thank you.
PRIVATE PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS-None were filed.

Mr. Vincent: Would you like the honor of adjourning the meeting?
Ms. Gildow: I move to adjourn.
Mrs. Osborn: I second.
Mr. Vincent: A motion to adjourn by Ms. Gildow, seconded by Mrs. Osborn. All in favor of
adjournment signify by saying aye. Those opposed nay.
A voice vote was taken with all being in favor. None were opposed. The meeting stands
adjourned . The meeting adjourned about 7:20 p.m.

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Zanesville City Council
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Rob Sharrer,
Public Safety Committee Chair
RESOLUTION NO. 2021- 99
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
A RESOLUTION DECLARING
"BEGGAR'S NIGHT"/"TRICK OR TREAT"
FOR THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE

WHEREAS, there is a tradition called "Beggar's Night" or "Trick or Treat" whereby
children go to neighbors' residences for the Halloween celebration and are given various items,
particularly candy; and
WHEREAS, the City is concerned with the safety and welfare of the children as they will
likely be in the streets, and it is necessary to restrict the time the children are exposed to such
dangers; and
WHEREAS, if neighborhoods within the City celebrate the tradition at the same time on
the same day the public will be more aware to watch for children in the streets and hopefully
decrease their exposure to a hazardous situation; and
WHEREAS, this Council wishes to designate Sunday, October 31, 2021, between the
hours of 5:30 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. as the City's "'Trick or Treat" night.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Zanesville,
Muskingum County, Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: Sunday, October 31, 2021, from 5:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. is officially
designated as Beggar's Night/Trick or Treat for the City of Zanesville.
SECTION TWO: This resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the
earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: - - - - - - ~ 2021

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Council

APPROVED:~---__,, 2021

This legislation approved as to form:

Donald L. Mason, Mayor

Law Director's Office

Community Development Committee
Mark Baker, Chair
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-109
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 1137 OF THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE'S PLANNING AND
ZONlNGCODE
WHEREAS, through a comprehensive review of the Planning and Zoning Code, The Community
Development Department has identified a need to update and add to Chapter 1137 Residential Districts; and
WHEREAS, according to Section 1117.01 "To adapt to changing development conditions and provide for
the phased implementation of the City Comprehensive Plan, the Planning Commission may from time to time
recommend, and Council may adopt, amendments to the provisions of the text of this Zoning Code ... as provided by
the Ohio Revised Code.", and
WHEREAS, proper notification of the intent of this proposed legislation was given in a newspaper of
general circulation; and
WHEREAS, after taking testimony and discussion, the Zanesville Planning Commission has
recommended to City Council that the proposed amendment to Chapter 113 7 be approved.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of Ohio; that
SECTION ONE: Chapter 1137 of the City of Zanesville's Planning and Zoning Ordinances shall receive
an additional section which shall read as follows:
1137.06 Administrative Reduction in Setback Standards
For the purpose of encouraging infill housing development in a harmonious and compatible manner consistent with
the surrounding neighborhood character, the Community Development Director may reduce a percentage and/or the
entirety of the required setbacks outlined in Section 1137.03 Table 11. The Community Development Director shall
review and provide a written finding of fact for such a reduction based on the following criteria:

1.

Feasibility for Development
The specific conditious of the subject parcel create an undue hardship for the property owner to develop the
lot.

2.

Economic Viability of the Development
The project would not be economically viable under the current setback standards.

3.

Neighborhood characteristics
The reduction in setback standards is consistent with the surrounding community characteristics.

4.

Public Health, Safety, and General Well-Being
The reduction in the setback standards will not jeopardize the public health, safety, or general well-being.
Additionally, it will not add an undue burden on city provided services

Ordinance No. 2021-109

SECTION TWO: This code addition shall be titled, "Chapter 1137.06 Administrative Reduction in Setback
Standards".
SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall take effect upon the approval of the Mayor and from and after
the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: - - - - - - - - - ~ 2 0 2 1 .
ATTEST:
SUSAN CULBERTSON
CLERK OF COUNCIL

DANIEL M. VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

APPROVED: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , 2021.

DONALD MASON
MAYOR

THIS LEGISLATION
APPROVED AS TO FORM

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE

Community Development Committee
Mark Baker, Chair
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-1 IO
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REVISE THE ZONING MAP AND
MAKE PERMANENT ZONING IN THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE, OHIO
AS HEREIN PROVIDED
WHEREAS, an application has been duly made requesting a zone change from RS-5 High Density SingleFamily to RM-2 High Density Multi-Family Residential; and
WHEREAS, proper notification of the intent of this Council to consider this request to rezone the below
described property was given to abutters within 200 feet of the requested rezoning and in a newspaper of general
circulation; and
WHEREAS, after testimony and discussion the Zanesville Planning Commission recommended to City
Council that the zone change request further identified on Exhibit "A", be approved.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of Ohio; that
SECTION ONE: The application for a zoning map amendment with respect to the real property hereinafter
described and shown in Exhibit "A'' is hereby approved and the zoning with respect to said property is so changed.
SECTION TWO: The Zoning Map of the City of Zanesville, Ohio, and the same is hereby amended and
revised by changing the zoning as follows:
From RS-5 High Density Single-Family to RM-2 High Density Multi-Family Residential, situated in the City
of Zanesville, County of Muskingum, and State of Ohio, and bounded and described as follows:
Auditors Parcel #81-71-02-18-000 recorded in Deed Volume 2944 Page 692, with said Deed Volume being
located in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office.
SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall take effect upon the approval of the Mayor and
from and after the earliest period allowed by law
PASSED: - - - - - - - - - - - · • 2021.
ATTEST:

SUSAN CULBERTSON
CLERK OF COUNCIL

DANIEL M. VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

A P P R O V E D : - - ~ - - - - ~ - - - - ' 2021.

DONALD MASON
MAYOR

THIS LEGISLATION
APPROVED AS TO FORM

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE

Attachment to ORD. 2021-110-Exhibit A
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Mark Baker, Chair
Community Development Committee

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-111
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORIDNANCE AUTHORIZING THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR TO WAIVE
PLANNING AND ZONING PERMIT FEES FOR THE MUSKINGUM SOIL AND WATER
CONSERVATION DISTRICT, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, the Muskingum Soil and Water Conservation District (MSWCD) is a government
organization dedicated to enhancing agriculture education, tourism, and economic development to the City of
Zanesville; and
WHEREAS, adequate facilities to carry out its stated mission are necessary; and
WHEREAS, The Muskingum Soil and Water Conservation District has received grant funding to
construct a pollinator garden in Downtown Zanesville; and
WHEREAS, the planning and zoning application fees for signage and accessory structures amount
to $125; and
WHEREAS, The Muskingum County Board of County Commissioners has requested the City
waive the fees as there is no available monies in the grant for this expenditure; and
WHEREAS, there are no Municipal Code provisions which permit City staff to waive fees
associated with zoning applications, and thus would require City Council approval; and
WHEREAS, it is in the public interest to assist the efforts of the Muskingum Soil and Water
Conservation District with its stated mission.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of Ohio;
that:
SECTION ONE: The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to waive $125 in
application fees associated with the Muskingum Soil and Water Conservation District's applications for zoning
compliance for a pollinator garden.

SECTION TWO: This fee waiver shall be a one-time courtesy to the Muskingum Soil and Water
Conservation District to help facilitate this new project.
SECTION THREE: Failure to immediately provide this waiver will result in the loss of tourism
opportunities associated with economic development and environmental benefits of which contributes to the wellbeing
of City residents.
SECTION FOUR: For the reasons stated in Section Five, this Ordinance is declared to be an
emergency measure. Provided it receives the affirmative vote of six (6) or more members of City Council, this
Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

Ordinance No. 2021-111

PASSED; _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _____,2021.

ATTEST:

SUSAN CULBERTSON
CLERK OF COUNCIL

DANIEL M. VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

APPROVED: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _......., 2021.

DON MASON
MAYOR

THIS LEGISLATION
APPROVED AS TO FORM

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE

Mark Baker, Chair
Community Development Committee
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-112
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COMMUNITY DEVEWPMENT DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT AN
APPLICATION FOR FUNDING THROUGH TO THE URBAN CANOPY RESTORATION GRANT
PROGRAM
WHEREAS, The Ohio Department of Natural Resources (ODNR) is offering an Urban Canopy
Restoration Grant to expand the tree planting ability of cities throughout Ohio; and
WHEREAS, The City of Zanesville is committed to restoring and increasing the tree canopy in
neighborhoods throughout the City; and
WHEREAS, City Administration has identified an eligible project with a total cost of$15,000; and
WHEREAS, The program requires a fifty percent (50%) matching requirement with the City's
matching obligation to be $7,500; and
WHEREAS, The deadline to submit the application to the Ohio Department of Natural Resources
is October 29111, 2021.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of Ohio;
that:

SECTION ONE: The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to draft, submit and
execute an application for funding in the amount of$7,500 to the Ohio Department of Natural Resources for the Urban
Canopy Restoration Grant Program. The deadline for application is October 29th , 2021.
SECTION TWO: Matching funds for this grant, in the amount of$7,500, will come from line 3034105-56185.

SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall take effect upon approval of the Mayor and from and
after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __,2021.

ATTEST:

SUSAN CULBERTSON
CLERK OF COUNCIL

DANIEL M. VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

APPROVED: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __.2021.

DON MASON
MAYOR

THIS LEGISLATION
APPROVED AS TO FORM

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE

Introduced by Law Director
David J. Tarbert

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-113
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE ALLOWING A MORAL CLAIM
WHEREAS, on July 30, 2021, Kathy J. Marinelli ("Morinelli") presented a legal claim
against the City of Zanesville for damage to her couch caused by a broken water line (Claim
2021-21); and
WHEREAS, the City Law Director denied said claim and Ms. Morinelli requested the
claim be presented to City Council as a moral claim based, in part, on the attachments hereto;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the City of Zanesville, Ohio,
that:

SECTION ONE: The proper City Official is hereby authorized to pay $1,500.00 to Kathy
J. Marinelli, upon a valid release being executed, and said monies shall be taken from line item
101-7951-53408.
SECTION TWO: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the
earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED:

--------~2021

ATTEST:
SUSAN CULBERTSON
Clerk of Council

DANIEL M. VINCENT
President of Council

APPROVED: _ _ _ _ _ _ ___, 2021

This Legislation Approved As To Form:

DONALD MASON
Mayor

Law Director's Office
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STATEMENT OF CLAIM AGAINST THE CITY OF
ZANESVILLE, OHIO
MAIL COMPLETED CLAIM TO: CLERK OF COUNCIL, 401 MARKET ST.,
ZANESVILLE, OHIO 43701
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This document and any items submitted with it become a public record per the
Public Records Act under Revised Code 149.43.
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Public Service Director
Scott Brown
ORDINANCE NO.

2021-102

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ADD TRAFFIC SIGNAL SUPERVISOR/PROGRAMMER
POSITION TO UNAFFILIATED PAY ORDINANCE

WHEREAS, Zanesville City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2020-152 establishing pay,
benefit, and employment policies and procedures for unaffiliated employees of the City of
Zanesville; and
WHEREAS, the Public Service Director has requested that a Job Classification of

Traffic Signal Supervisor/Programmer position be added to the unaffiliated pay ordinance;
and
WHEREAS, the Public Service Director desires to have said job classification be
placed at pay grade 9 on the pay ordinance.
NOW1 THEREFORE,, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, Ohio that:
SECTION ONE: Effective the first day of the first full pay period following the
effective date of this ordinance, the proper city official is hereby authorized adopt the new
job classification: Traffic Signal Supervisor/Programmer.
SECTION TWO: This position shall be placed at pay grade 9. Future pay assignment

and adjustments will be made pursuant to procedures established by Ordinance No. 202~
152.
SECTION THREE:This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the

earliest period allowed by law.
PASSED:-----------~ 2021

ATTEST:_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __
SUSAN CULBERTSON
CLERK OF COUNCIL

DANIEL M VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

Ordinance No. 2021-102

APPROVED: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ____, 2021

This legislation approved as to form:
DON MASON
MAYOR

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE
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POSITION DESCRIPTION
City of Zanesville
CLASSIFICATION TITLE:
FLSA STATUS/TYPE
CIVIL SERVICE STATUS
BARGAINING UNIT
DEPARTMENT

TRAFFIC SIGNAL SUPERVISOR/PROGRAMMER
Nonexempt

Classified
None
Traffic Signal Maintenance

EMPLOYMENT STATUS
REPORTS TO
PAV GRADE
CLASS SERIES NUMBER

Fulltime
Public Safety Director
9
43513

POSITION QUALIFICATIONS
An appropriate combination of education, training, coursework, and experience may qualify an applicant to demonstrate
required knowledge, skills, and abilities. Must have a high school diploma or equivalent; 7 years electrical or traffic signal
experience (or combination of coursework and experience); 2 years management experience; IMSA Level I Technician
certificate; and possession of a State of Ohio motor vehicle operator's license.
Desirable qualifications are possession of journeyman electrical license, master electrician license, or State of Ohio Board
of Building Standards Electrical Safety Inspector license.
Ability to document identity and employment eligibility within three (3) days of original appointment as a condition of
employment in compliance with Immigration Reform and Control Act requirements.

LICENSURE OR CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS
lMSA Level II Technician [or possession within 1 year of employment]; State motor vehicle operator's license.
DISTINGUISHING JOB CHARACTERISTICS
Under direction, manages Traffic Signal maintenance operations and City Electrician and oversees maintenance of
electrical systems in city owned properties, including street lighting, sports lighting, and electrical hookups for events held
on City of Zanesville owned properties, and assists City Maintenance Supervisor for daily operations.
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
To perform this job successfully, on individuol must be ob/e to sotisfactorily perform eodt essential duty listed below. Reasonable accommodations will be made for
disobled persons, covered by the Americans with Di~bilities Act, in a,,ordon,e with its requirements.

•

Manages Traffic signal maintenance operations. Plans installations and repairs, schedules work orders, assigns
work, provides direction, and ensures work is completed in accordance with quality standard and plan. Maintains
authority to issue verbal and written reprimands, evaluates employee performance, trains staff; resolves
complaints, provides input into employee selection, and approves leave requests.

•

Designs signal and street lighting. Reviews proposed installation and repair projects and provides input.

•

Solicits cost estimates for material and supplies and makes purchase in accordance with budget. Orders
lampposts, arms, cable, heads, hoods, and other items to service electronic traffic lights.

•

Establishes traffic signal procedures and work rules in accordance with City policy.

•

Works with and coordinates work efforts with City, State and local officials. Attends meetings with officials,
builders, consultants, developers and others to help plan signal requirements for future development of City
infrastructure.
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•

Repairs, installs and maintains city electronic traffic control signals.

•

Sets up controllers. Repairs amps, timers and other electronic equipment. Installs and maintains new loops.
Adjusts timing on the mains, sides and left/right turn lights.

•

Prepares lamp replacement, repair and new installation reports, and maintains records reflecting equipment and
materials used.

•

Determines traffic light sequencing.

•

Maintains equipment in proper and safe operating condition.

•

Maintains responsibility for promoting and enforcing shop safety practices.

•

Interprets blueprints to determine materials and methods for installation appropriate for use.

•

Planning and layout of electrical and wiring projects, analyzes electrical panels and switches and designs circuits
most efficient for city operations.

OTHER DUTlES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Performs electrical inspections for Building Code Division.
SCOPE OF SUPERVISION
Traffic Signal Technicians I and II and Master Electrician, City Maintenance Staff in the absence of City Maintenance
Supervisor.
EQUIPMENT OPERATED
Crane; Trencher; power tools, 2-ton bucket truck; hand-tools; pavement cutter; welder (electric or gas), chainsaw;
propane torches; electromechanical controllers; solid state controllers; multimeter amp probe; controller tester; conflict
monitor test; jackhammer; ladder; plumbing tools; chipper; post-hole digger; bob-cat; brush-hog.
CONTACTS WITH OTHERS
General public; officials, developers, Street, Building Maintenance, Fire, and Police Department employees.
CONFIDENTIAL DATA
Proposed development; employee personnel files [sensitive information].
WORKING CONDITIONS
Good working conditions but with occasional exposure to heat, cold, dampness, fumes, traffic/equipment noise, dirt, dust
and other conditions. Exposure to occasional high volume traffic, high voltage and heights when working in the bucket
truck. the employee must use standard safety precautions due to exposure to injury from operation of equipment and
work requirements.
USUAL PHYSICAL DEMANDS
The following physical demands are typically exhibited by position incumbents performing this Job's essential duties and responsibllities. These
physical demands ore not and should nat be construed to be job qualification standards, but are illustrated to help the employer, employee and/or
applicant identify tasks where reasonable accommodations may need to be made when an otherwise qualified person is unable to perform the
job's essential duties because ofon ADA disability.

While performing duties of this job, the employee frequently stands and walks for extended periods of time, uses hands
to hold and control equipment; reaches with hands and arms, climbs and balances, and stoops, kneels, crouches, and
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crawls. Vision demands include close, relatively detailed vision, with the ability to adjust focus when performing
maintenance work.

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles.

•
•
•
•

Traffic signal design and construction.
Advanced electronic principles governing traffic control equipment.
Electronic and electric equipment maintenance and repair methods.
Work hazards and safety practices.

Ability to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Analyze electronic malfunctions and diagnose cause.
Interpret schematics.
Trace electrical circuits.
Communicate effectively.
Prepare reports.
Meet construction deadlines and specifications.
Plan installation and repair work projects.

Skill in:
•
•

Operation of equipment utilized in traffic control maintenance operations.
Operation of electronic test equipment.

This job description in no manner states or implies that these are the only duties and responsibilities to be performed by the employee filling
this position, who will be required to follow instructions and perform any duties required by the employee's supervisor or designee.

MANAGEMENT APPROVAL

/_ /_
Department Head

Date

EMPLOYEE UNDERSTANDING AND AGREEMENT
I understand, and will effectively perform the duties and requirements specified in this job description.

/_ /_
Employee

Date
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SCHEDULE A

PAY

ANNUAL SALARY

GRADE
1
2

MINIMUM
$20,685.60
$22,578.33

MIDPOINT

3
4

$24,644.25

HOURLY EQUIVALENT

MAXIMUM

MINIMUM

MIDPOINT
$13 .26

MAXIMUM

$14.47

$16.58
$18.09

$1 1.85

$15 .80

$19.75

$44,832.00

$12.93

$17.24

$21 .55

$39,147.30

$48,934.12

$14.12

$18.82

$23 .53

$42,729.28

$53,4 11.60
$58,298.76

$15.41

$25.68

$16.82

$20.54
$22.42
$24.47

$30.59

$34,476.00
$37,630.55

$9.95
$10.85

$41,073.75

$26,899.20

$32,859.00
$35,865.60

5

$29,360.48

6
7

$32,046.96
$34,979.26

$27,580.80
$30,104.44

$46,639.01

$28.03

8

$38,179 .85

$50,906.48

$63,633 .10

$18.36

9
10
11
12
13
14

$41 ,673.31

$55,564.42

$69,455.52

$60,648.57
$66,197.91

$75,810.70
$82,747.39

$26.71
$29.16

$33.39

$45,486.42
$49,648.43

$20.04
$2 1.87
$23 .87

$31.83

$39.78

$90,318.77
$98,582.94

$26.05
$28.44

$34.74

$43.42

$59,149.76

$72,255 .02
$78,866.35

$37.92

$47.40

$64,561.96

$86,082.62

$107,603.28

$31.04

$41.39

$51 .73

$54,191.26

SCHEDULEB

$36.45
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Job Classification
Accounting Specialist
Admin Asst. to Auditorium Manager
Admin Secretary to Community Dev Director
Admin Secretarv to Safety Director
Administrative Secretary to Public Service Director
Airport Manager
Assistant Jail Administrator
Assistant Law Director
Associate Planner for Planning & Zoning
Auditing Specialist
Budget and Finance Director
Building Inspector
Cemeteries & Parks Supervisor
Chief Probation Officer
City Architect
City Engineer
City Maintenance Supervisor
Civil Service Employment Coordinator
Code Enforcement Officer
Code Enforcement/Building Inspector
Community Development Director
Council Clerk
Court Bailiff
Deputy Auditor
Deputy Court Bailiff
Deputy Court Clerk
Deputy Director/Public Service
Deputy Income Tax Administrator
Deputy Treasurer
Deputy Wastewater Superintendent
Engineering Technician
Environmental Coordinator
Executive Secretary to Mayor
Fair Housing Coordinator
Fire Chief
Fleet Manager
General Service Worker City Maintenance
GlS Specialist
Human Resources Manager
HVAC Technician/Inspector City Maintenance
Income Tax Administrator
Income Tax Auditor/Investigations
Income Tax Clerk II
Income Tax Clerk III
IT Administrator
IT Technician
Jail Administrator
Maintenance Garage Coordinator
Master Electrician
Municipal Court Bookkeeper

Pay
Grade
7

4
5
5
5
9

8

13
7

5

14
10
11
9

13
13
9

5
6
9

14
7
6

10
5

4
11
9
9
11
6

10
6

5
13

11
4

11
11
7
10

7
4
5
11
9
11
4
10
2
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Municipal Court Clerk
Paralegal
Payroll Clerk
Planning & Zoning Administrator
Plant Maintenance Mechanic/Foreman - Sewer
Police Chief
Public Safety Director
Public Service Auditor
Public Service Director
Purchasing Coordinator
Redevelopment Administrator
Refuse Collection Supervisor
Secrest Auditorium and Entertainment Director
Secretary for Parks and Cemeteries Superintendent
Secretary to Fire Chief
Secretarv to Probation Officer
Secretary to Superintendent of Streets and Refuse
Secretary to Wastewater Superintendent
Secretary to Water Superintendent
Sewer/Drain Maintenance Crew Leader
Sewer/Drain Maintenance Supervisor
Storm Water Program Manager
Street & Refuse Superintendent
Street Maintenance Supervisor
Traffic Signal Supervisor/Programmer
Traffic Signal Crew Leader - City Maintenance
Traffic Si1mal Tech 1 - City Maint
Utility Billing Clerk I Unaffiliated - Part-Time
Utility Billing Supervisor
Victim/Witness Coordinator
Wastewater Lab Supervisor
Wastewater Superintendent
Water Maintenance and Metering Supervisor
Water Maintenance Crew Leader
Water Maintenance Crew Leader
Water Superintendent
Weed, Litter, and Property Preservation Manager

7
5

8
9

13
14
8
14
5

7
7
13
4
4
4
4
4
4

6
7
11
11
7
9
8

6
4

9
5
9
12
7

6
6

12
5

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-106
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIAL TO
ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH ZANESVILLE CITY SCHOOLS

WHEREAS, the Zanesville City School Board desires to have School Resow-ce Officers assigned
to its schools to increase the safety of its students, teachers, and administrative staff, and deter criminal activity in
the schools; and
WHEREAS, the City desires to work to ensure student safety and deter criminal activity by
providing the schools with School Resow-ces Officers; and
WHEREAS, the proposed Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated as though
fully rewritten herein, between the City of Zanesville and the Zanesville City School Board sets forth the duties and
services to be provided by the City through the School Resource Officers, and the compensation to be paid by the
school for such services;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of
Ohio, that:

SECTION ONE: The proper city official is hereby authorized to enter into a contract, in
substantially the same form as the attached Exhibit A, with the Zanesville City School Board to provide Zanesville
Police Officers who will be serving as School Resource Officers during each school year.
SECTION TWO: The Zanesville City School Board will pay the City of Zanesville the current
benefitted rate for said officer(s)' hours of work for the term of the attached agreement.
SECTION THREE:
period allowed by law.

PASSED:

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest

---------~2021

ATTEST:

APPROVED:

SUSAN CULBERTSON,

DANIEL M. VINCENT

Clerk of Council

President of Council

-----------~ 2021

THIS LEGISLATION APPROVED AS mFORM

Donald L. Mason,
Mayor

LAW DIRECTOR'S DFFll::E
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SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER AGREEMENT
This School Resource Officer Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into for the
2021-2022 (August 23, 2021-January 14, 2022) school year between The Zanesville City Schools
(hereinafter the "Schools"), and the City of Zanesville, Ohio, (hereinafter "City"), an Ohio
municipal corporation. The City and the Schools may hereinafter be referred to individually as a
"Party," or collectively as the ''Parties."

WHEREAS, The Schools operate elementary, middle, and high schools in the City of
Zanesville: and

WHEREAS, the City is a municipality of the State of Ohio, and operates a police
department within the City of Zanesville; and

WHEREAS, The Schools desire to have a police officer assigned to their premises to
increase safety and deter criminal behavior; and

WHEREAS, the City believes that assigning an officer to the Schools would increase
student safety and deter crime; and

WHEREAS, due to staffing levels and the planned retirement of one of the School
Resource Officers (singularly '"SRO" and collectively "SROs" herein) during the school year, the
pay structure is modifiable as set forth herein.
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and in consideration
of the mutual promises contained herein, the Parties agree to the following:
1. The City will designate up to four police officers as SROs and assign said officers to work
in the Zanesville City Schools on all school days during the 2021-2022 school year.
2. The Schools will pay the City One Hundred Fifty-One Thousand, Four Hundred Fifty-Nine
Dollars and Twenty Cents ($151,459.20) for four officers during the 2021-2022 (August
23, 2021 -January 14, 2022) school year to help offset the costs involved. The number of
days is subject to change due to any restrictions related to the COVID 19 pandemic,
retirements, or staffing levels. Payment will be prorated to reflect any of the changes listed
above.
3. It is anticipated one of the SROs will retire during the school year (as defined above)
approximately 43 days into the term. The current estimated cost of three full term (August
23, 2021 -January 14th 2022) officers and one officer serving forty-three (43) days is One
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Hundred Thirty-One Thousand, Six Hundred Eighty-Five Dollars and Thirty-Six Cents
($131,685.36). If this retirement happens and the officer is not replaced, this shall be the
amount the School will pay unless said officer is replaced by the City, in which case
payment set forth in Paragraph 2 shall apply except that said payment may be prorated by
the Schools if the replacement officer does not begin immediately upon the officer's
retirement.

4. The parties acknowledge that the SROs may be unavailable on certain occasions due to
sick or vacation time and in the event of a serious event may be ordered to leave the school
post to aide law enforcement.
5. The parties acknowledge that this agreement has been reviewed and authorized by both the
Zanesville City Council and the Zanesville City School Board.
The parties have hereunto subscribed their names on the day and year first aforesaid.

THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE

THE ZANESVILLE CITY SCHOOLS

Name:

Name:

------------Public Safety Director

Name: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __

Name: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __
Treasurer

Police Chief

Date:

Date:

Approved to Form:

City of Zanesville Law Director

Name: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __

-------------Superintendent

Date:

Doug Merry,
Public Safety Director

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-107
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
APPROVING A LABOR AGREEMENT WITH THE FRATERNAL ORDER OF
POLICE, OHIO LABOR COUNCIL, INC. (POLICE SECRETARIES AND RECORDS
CLERKS) AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.
WHEREAS, the Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc. (Police Secretaries
and Records Clerks) has been recognized as the exclusive bargaining agent for permanent City
employees occupying the ranks of Police Secretaries and Record Clerks under the present
classification system; and
WHEREAS, the City and Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc. (Police
Secretaries and Records Clerks) have reached a tentative agreement which has subsequently been
approved by the members of the bargaining unit; and
WHEREAS, City Council must adopt the terms of the agreement in order for it to go into
effect; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 4117 .10 (B ), City Council must
approve or reject the proposed agreement within 30 days of its introduction or the agreement will
be deemed approved, making it necessary for this ordinance to be declared an emergency
measure so as to not jeopardize the health, safety, and welfare of our citizens by threatening the
efficient service of the Zanesville Police Department.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville,
State of Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: The labor agreement between the City of Zanesville and Fraternal
Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc. (Police Secretaries and Records Clerks) (attached
hereto and incorporated as though fully rewritten herein), and on file in the office of the Clerk of
Council, is hereby approved.
SECTION TWO: The agreement authorized by this ordinance is intended to take effect
retroactively starting January 1, 2021. If necessary due to delays in implementation, the pay
provisions within the agreement shall be retroactive to the first day of the first full pay period of
2021. If necessary due to delays in implementation, the Mayor is authorized to determine the
date other provisions of the agreement shall take effect.
SECTION THREE: For the reasons stated above, upon the affirmative votes of six (6)
or more members of Council, this ordinance shall be deemed an emergency and take effect and
be in force immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor. Otherwise, it shall take
effect and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

Ordinance No. 2021-107

PASSED:

- - - - ~ 2021

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Daniel Vincent
President of Council

APPROVED: - - - - ~ 2021

This legislation approved as to form:

Donald Mason, Mayor

David Tarbert, City Law Director
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AGREEMENT BETWEEN
FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE, OHIO
LABOR COUNCIL, INC.
(POLICE SECRETARIES AND RECORDS
CLERKS)
AND
THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE, OHIO
Date of Execution through December 31, 2023
Case No. 2020 MED 07-0737
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ARTICLE l
AGREEMENT
Section 1.1 Agreement This Agreement is entered into by the City of Zanesville, Ohio hereinafter
referred to as the "City" or "Employer" and the Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc.,
hereinafter referred to as the "Labor Council".
Section 1.2 Purpose This Agreement has as its purpose the following:
A.
To comply with the requirements of Chapter 4117 of the Ohio Revised Code and to
set forth the full and complete understandings and agreements between the parties
governing the wages, hours, terms and other conditions of employment for those
employees included in the bargaining unit as defined herein.
B.
To promote cooperation and orderly, constructive, and harmonious relations between
the City, its employees, and the Labor Council.
To prevent interruptions of work and interference with the efficient operation of the
C.
Police Department.
D.
To establish a procedure for the peaceful resolution of grievances.
This Agreement supersedes all previous Agreements ( either written or oral) between the
C1ty, its employees, and the Labor Council.
Section 1.3 Modification of Agreement The express provisions ofthis Agreement may be changed
only by mutual agreement between the parties, reduced to writing, dated, and signed by the parties
to this Agreement.
Section 1.4 Saving Clause Should any portion oftbis Agreement contained herein be declared
invalid by operation oflaw or by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidation of said part or
provision shall not invalidate the remaining portions hereof and they shall remain in full force and
effect. In addition, within twenty (20) calendar days following the effective date of such declaration
of invalidity, the parties shall meet in an attempt to modify such provision to comply with the
applicable law.

ARTICLE 2
RECOGNITION
Section 2.1. Recognition The City hereby recognizes the Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor
Council as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for the purpose of collective bargaining of all
wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment for all full-time employees that have
been certified by the State Employment Relations Board:
All Full-Time Police Secretaries
All Full-Time Police Records Clerks
Section 2.2 Exclusions

All positions and classifications not specifically cstablishedherein as
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being included in the bargaining unit shall be excluded.
Section? .3. }.;°ew Positions
In the event that a new civilian position is created in the
Zanesville Police Department, the City shal I determine whether the new positions will be included
in or excluded from the bargaining unit and shall so advise the Labor Council. If there is any
dispute as to the City's determination of bargaining unit status, the parties will meet to attempt to
resolve their disagreement. If the parties agree on the determination, it shall be implemented as
proposed by the City. If the parties still do not agree, the City may implement its determination,
subject to challenge by the Labor Council via a petition for unit clarification to the State
Employment Relations Board.
The City shall not attempt to abridge this Agreement by changing the classification designation of
any employee during the length of this Agreement, with the purpose to eliminate such employees
from the bargaining unit.
Section 2.4 Recoi:mition Clause Applies to Employees
This recogmtion clause shall be
construed to apply to employees and not to work. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement it
shall not limit the City's right to transfer work to other employees not included within the above
described bargaining unit when the nature or amount of work changes; it shall not be construed to
mean that any employee or classification of employees has an exclusive right to any work.

ARTICLE 3
LABOR COUNCIL SECURITY
Section 3.1 Labor Council Dues Deductions
The Labor Council will notify the City in
writing of the dues it charges and its current membership, and will update this information as
needed to be accurate.
The Employer agrees to deduct membership dues at the rate certified by the Ohio Labor
Council. One month's advance notice must be given to the City prior to making any changes in the
rate. The Employer agrees to deduct membership dues equally from each pay of any employee in
the bargaining unit who has authorized the same in writing to the City Treasurer.
Section 3.2. Preference Over Dues
It is understood and agreed that other legally required
deductions shall have preference over the aforesaid Labor Council dues.
All dues collected under this Article shall be paid by the
Section 3 .3 Payment/Labor Counci I
Employer, within thirty (30) days, together with a listing of the members for whom deductions were
made, to the Treasurer of F.O.P. Zanesville Lodge #5.
Section 3.4. Membership Cancellation
A member may withdraw authorization for dues deduction by the City by directing
A.
his request in writing to the City Treasurer.
Dues deduction shall cease upon the happening of any of the following events:
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B.
C.

1.
Resignation or discharge of the employee;
2.
Transfer of the employee from the bargaining unit;
3.
Revocation of the dues deduction authorization.
No other employee organization's dues shall be deducted from the pay of any
bargaining unit member dming the life of this Agreement.
The Labor Council hereby agrees that they will indemnify and hold the Employer
harmless from any claims, actions, or proceedings by an employee or the Labor
Council arising from deductions made by the Employer pursuant to this Article,
except the non-payment of funds deducted from the employee's pay.

Section 3.5. Refunds
The Labor Council agrees to refund to the City any amounts paid to it
in error on account of these check off provisions upon presentation of proper evidence thereof.
The City shall provide, at the Department, a bulletin board for
Section 3 .6 Bulletin Board
the use of the Labor Council. Labor Council officials shall be responsible for posting and/or
approving the posting of notices thereon which employees may read when reporting to or leaving
their work stations, or during their free time. All notices or literature posted does not first have to be
approved by the City or the Chief of Police.
The Labor Council agrees that no notices will be placed on the bulletin board which contains:
A.
Personal attacks upon any City employee;
B.
Scandalous, scurrilous or derogatory attacks upon the Administration;
C.
Attacks on any other employee organizations;
Any obscene material;
D.
E.
Ethnic material.
The Labor Council shall be permitted, upon prionvritten notification
Section 3. 7. Ballot Box
to the Chief of Police, to place a ballot box at Department Headquarters for the purpose of collecting
member's ballots on all Labor Council issues subject to ballot. Such box shall be the property of the
Labor Council and neither the box not its contents shall be subject to the City's review. Such
balloting shall not interfere with work activities.
Section 3.8 Use of Depanmental Mail System
The Labor Council shall be permitted to utilize,
at no cost or loss of time to the City, the Departmental Mail System for the purpose of providing
information pertaining to Labor Council business to bargaining unit employees. The Labor Council
agrees that the use of the mail system will be reasonable and limited to providing infonnation that is
necessary for the normal conduct of Labor Council bargaining unit business or bargaining unit
representation. All mail placed into the mail system by the Labor Council shall be the property of
the bargaining unit members to whom it is addressed, and such mail shall not be subject to review by
the City.
Meetings of the Committees of the Labor Council will be
Section 3.9 Place for TVIeetinQs
permitted on City property when and where work is not interrupted by such meetings and when such
meetings are not held during the regularly scheduled duty hours of the participants on the day in
question. Committees shall not consist of more thllil three (3) members and may meet as necessary
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to administer this Agreement.
lfthe City contracts out a service, the
Section 3.10 Contracting Om Bargaining Unit Work
successor shall honor the Agreement and retain the City's employees for the duration of this
Agreement.

ARTICLE4
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS
Section 4.1 Management's Rights
Except to the extent expressly abridged by a specific
provision of this Agreement, the city reserves and retains, solely and exclusively, all of its rights as
such rights existed prior to the execution of this Agreement.
The Employer is not required to bargain on subjects reserved to the management and
direction of the governmental unit except as they affect wages, hours, terms and conditions of
employment, and continuation, modification, and/or deletion of an existing provision of this
Agreement.
Section 4.2. Legal Authority
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall illegally alter the
authority conferred by state and federal laws, Zanesville ordinances, or resolutions upon any city
official or to, in any way, abridge or reduce such authority. This Agreement shall be construed as
requiring city officials to follow the procedures, agreements, and policies prescribed herein to the
extent they are applicable in the exercise of the authority conferred upon them by law.

If there is a conflict between any part of this Agreement and local laws or ordinances of the
City of Zanesville, the Agreement provisions shall prevail.
Section 4.3 Specified Rights
Management retains the right to:
direct the work of its employees;
A.
to hire, promote, transfer, assign, and retain employees in City positions;
B.
to suspend, demote or discharge employees for proper and just cause;
C.
D.
to maintain the efficiency of governmental operations;
E.
to relieve employees from duties because oflack of work;
F.
to take actions as may be necessary to carry out the mission of the agency in
emergencies; and
G.
to determine the methods, means, and persormel by which operations are to be carried
on, subject to the provisions as are expressly provided herein.
Section 4.4 Reserved Powers of the City The listing of specific rights in this Agreement is not
intended to be, nor shall it be. restrictive of or a waiver of the rights of management not listed and
specifically surrendered herein whether or not such rights have been exercised by the City in the
past.
Section 4.5 Recognition of Management Ri!!hts

The Labor Council
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prerogative of the City to operate and manage its affairs in all respects in accordance with its
responsibilities; and the powers of authority which the City has not officially abridged,
delegated, or modified by this Agreement are retained by the City. The Labor Council further
recognizes and agrees that the City has complete authority over the policies and administration of
the municipal Service which it exercises under the provision of law and in fulfilling its
responsibilities under this Agreement.
Published job descriptions and
Section 4.6 Duties Not Covered by Job Descriptions
requirements shall not be construed as limiting or restricting an employee from performing all
duties incidental to or required by this job.

ARTICLE 5
JOINT COOPERATION
Section 5.1 Joint Cooperation
In recognition of the mutual interests of both parties in
maintaining efficient and economical public services, the Labor Council agrees that it will support
the City's efforts to achieve the following objectives:
A.
B.
C.

D.
E.
F.
G.

H.

I.
J.
K.
L.

Elimination of waste and inefficiency in the provision of services.
Improvement of the quality of services rendered.
Combating Stalling on the job.
Combating absenteeism.
Elimination of restrictions on work output.
Conservation of materials and supplies.
Prevention of accidents.
Improvement of working conditions.
Installation of labor-saving devices and machinery and technical changes.
Protection of property and machinery.
Cleanliness of facilities.
Incentive pay plans or systems.

Section 5.2 No Misrepresentation
It is mutually agreed that neither party, its
agents, or its members will initiate, sanction, or participate in any display,
advertisement, or any other publicity misrepresenting the position of the other
party. This shall not prohibit either party to this Agreement from making the
general public aware of the issues which may be causing an impasse or
disagreement.

ARTICLE 6
NON-DISCRlMINATION
Section 6.1 Labor Council Affiliation
A.
Both parties agree that they will not discriminate between Labor Council and non
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B.

C.

Labor Council employees in fulfilling their responsibilities under this Agreement.
The Labor Council further agrees that neither it nor any of its officers or members
will intimidate or coerce employees into membership in the Labor Council or for any
other reason.
The Labor Council shall accept, and make available, the right to join the Labor
Cow1cil and also provide representation, if requested, to all employees covered by
this Agreement on a nondiscriminatory basis.
Labor Council members agree that they shall not allow membership or nonmembership in the Labor Council to affect their on-the-job relationship with their
fellow employees.

Section 6.2 Singular and Gender Clause

Whenever the context so requires, the use of words
herein in the singular shall be constrned to include the plural, and words in the plural, the
singular. Words whether in masculine, feminine or neuter gender shall be construed to
include all of said genders. By the use of either the masculine or feminine gender, it is
understood that said use is for convenience purposes only and is not to be interpreted to be
discriminatory by reason of sex.

ARTICLE 7
LABOR COUNCIL REPRESENTATION
The Employer shall recognize no more than one
Section 7. l Labor Council Reprcsentmivcs
employee who shall be the chief steward selected by members of the Labor Council to act as
representative for the purpose of this Agreement. The employee so designated shall be recognized
as the representative provided herein. However, in the absence of the designated representative, the
Labor Council may select an alternate to act in place of the designated representative.
The Labor Council shall provide
Section 7.2. Roster of Labor Council Representatives.
to the Employer an official roster of its representative which is to be kept cu1Tent at all times and
shall include the following:
1.
Name
2.
Address
3.
Home Telephone Number
4.
Labor Council Position Held
Section 7 .3 . Activities of Labor Council Representative A steward will investigate and process
grievances during non-working hours whenever possible. When this is not possible, a steward will
be permitted leave with pay during working hours, provided the steward first obtains the permission
of his inunediate supervisor and the permission of the supervisor of any employee with which the
steward intends to speak. Such permission shall not be unreasonably withheld.
The Labor Council agrees that no representative of the Labor Council, either employee or
non-employee, shall unduly interfere, interrupt, or disrupt the normal work duties of employees.
Further, the Labor Council agrees not to conduct meetings (bargaining unit, grievance, or committee
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meetings) involving on-duty employees except to the extent specifically authorized by the
Employer.
The Labor Council agrees that the Labor Council and its members, collectively and
individually, will assume financial liability for any and all damages to City property and equipment
incwred and/or arising from Labor Council meetings conducted on City premises.
Section 7.4 Access to City Premises
The Labor Council employees and representatives shall
be allowed on City premises and work areas. Such visits must be prearranged with and authorized
by the Police Chief (or authorized representative) as to time and place so as to avoid interference
with the operations of the City.
Section 7.5 Delegates
One (1) Labor Council representative may attend as a representative
the Annual Conference and/or seminars for a maximum of tvvo (2) work days. Such attendance on
scheduled work days will be considered "time worked" and the employee will attend without loss of
pay or benefits.

ARTICLE 8
NO STRIKE/NO LOCKOUT
Section 8. 1 No Strike-No Lockout
lnasmuchasthisAgreementprovidesproceduresforthe
orderly resolution of grievances, including resolution by an impartial third party, the City and the
Labor Council recognize their mutual responsibility to provide for uninterrupted services to the
citizens of Zanesville. Therefore:
The Labor Council agrees that neither it, its officers, agents, representatives, or any
employees covered by this Agreement will authorize, instigate, cause, aid, condone, or participate in
any strike or work stoppage for the duration of this Agreement. The City agrees that it will not
lockout or prevent employees from perfo1ming their regularly assigned duties. Informational
picketing, as approved by the SERB, shall not be considered to be illegal picketing.
Section 8.? Affimrntive Action
Labor Council officers and representatives are required to take
affirmative action to try to prevent a violation of this article.
Section 8 .3 Crossing Picket Lines
Employees may be required to go through picket lines
where an emergency requires them to do so to protect the public health, safety, and welfare.

ARTICLE 9
PROBATIONARY PERJOD
Section 9. l Length of Probationary Period
All probationary periods shall be for a period of
one hundred and eighty days. Work days from two (2) different probationary periods shall not be
combined for purposes of computing the required time for the current probationary period.
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Section 9.2 Right to Discharge
The City retains the right to discharge any employee during the
probationary period for any reason. Any employee who fails to complete the probationary period
can be discharged by the City without appeal by the employee.

ARTICLE 10
SENTORJTY
Seniority shall be defined as an employee's
Section 1O. l Definition of Seniority
uninterrupted length of continuous full-time employment as a secretary or records clerk with the
City of Zanesville Police Department. Seniority will only accrue while on paid status.
No Break In Service. The following situations shall not constitute a break in continuous service.
Employees shall continue to accumulate seniority in these situations:
A.
Absence while on approved leave of absence;
B.
Absence while on approved sick leave or disability;
C.
Military leave;
D.
A layoff of three (3) years' duration or less;
The following situations constitute a break in continuous service for which
Break In Service.
seniority is lost:
A.
Discharge for just cause;
B.
Retirement;
C.
Layoff for more than three (3) years;
D.
Failure to return to work upon recall from layoff pursuant to section 11.3 (b );
E.
Failure to return to work upon expiration of a leave of absence;
F.
Resignation
Section 10.2 Scnioritv List
Seniority shall be brought up to date by the City each January
4th showing the employee's name, title, date of hire, department working in, and order of
seniority. Any objection to the seniority list, as posted, must be reported to the employer within ten
(10) days from the date posted or it shall stand as posted.
Section l 0.3 Application of Senioritv
Annual vacation preference
Layoff and Recall

Seniority shall be applicable in the following situations:

Section 10.4 Equal Senioritv
In the event two (2) or more employees have equal seniority, it
shall be determined from the records of the appointing authority (by the application filing time
stamped by Civil Service) as to the order of appointment.
Section 10.5 Re-assienment
In the event a full-time secretary is re-assigned to the position
of records clerk due to a vacancy in the Records Department, the most junior secretary will be reassigned. The affected employee will receive a wage adjustment to the records clerk hourly pay rate
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scale the nearest step to their current wage provided the affected employee performs only records
clerk assignments for the entire 8-hour shift. This re-assignment will not exceed 120 calendar days
per year.
In the event a full-time records clerk is re-assigned to the position of police secretary due to a
vacancy, the affected employee will receive a wage adjustment to the police secretary hourly pay rate
scale the nearest step above their current wage for each hour the affected employee perfonns the
duties of the police secretary. Should this re-assignment exceed 120 days the affected employee v.rill
automatically be considered promoted to the position of police secretary.

ARTICLE 11
LAYOFF AND RECALL
Section I J .1 LavoffNotification
When the City detennines that a layoff or job
abolishment is necessary, they shall notify the affected employees at least fourteen (14) calendar days
in advance of the effective date of the layoff or job abolishment. The City, upon request from the
Labor Council, agrees to discuss with representatives of the Labor Council the impact of the layoff
on bargaining unit employees.
Whenever, for any reason, it becomes necessary or expedient to reduce
Section 11.? Layoff
the work force within a position classification, all emergency, provisional, temporary, part-time,
seasonal, and probationary employees in the bargaining unit shall be laid off first before any
reduction is made in the permanent work forces. Permanent employees shall be laid off in order of
their seniority with that employee having the least seniority being laid off first then continuing in like
manner until the required reduction in the work force has been accomplished. Employees shall be
paid for all accumulated vacation and compensatory time at the time of layoff.
Section 11.3 Recall
A.
Permanent employees who are on lay off shall be recalled in reverse order of their
layoff with the last employee laid off being the first to be called back and continuing
in like manner until the required number of employees have been recalled.
B.
The City shall notify the employee of his recall at his last address on record with the
City, by certified letter with return receipt requested, and employ him if he reports
and is available for work within fourteen (14) days after notice of recall. If said
employee fails to report for work within fourteen (14) days after notice ofrecall, he
shall be considered as having voluntarily resigned. However, illness incapacitating
the employee for work or extended absence from home at the time of recall shall be
sufficient excuse for not reporting for work. The City must be informed of the
excuse within twenty-four (24) hours after receipt of notice of recall. An employee
loses his right to recall and is considered to have volw1tarily resigned if his address
on file with the City is not accurate.
An employee who is on layoff for a period of
Section 11.4. Lavoff Beyond Three Years
three (3) years is automatically terminated and loses all seniority.
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Section 11.5 Probationary Period
Recalled employees shall not serve a probationary
period upon reinstatement, except that employees serving a probationary period at layoff, shall be
required to finish such probationary period.

ARTICLE 12
LABOR/1\llAN/\GEMENT MEETINGS

Section l?.1 Meetings
In the interest and sound Labor/Management relations, the Labor
Council and the City will meet at agreeable dates and times for the purpose of discussing those
matters outlined in Section 2 below. Normally, no more than two (2) employee representatives of
the Labor Council and one (1) non-employee representative of the Labor Council shall be permitted
to attend such meetings.
Section 12.2 Agenda
The party requesting the meeting shall furnish an agenda when
possible. This does not prevent the discussion of other topics that may come up during the meeting.
The Labor Council will furnish the names of the Labor Council employees who will be attending.
Subjects that may be discussed at these meetings shall include (but not limited to) the items listed
below.
A.
Discuss the administration of this Agreement;
B.
Notify the Labor Council of changes made by the City which may affect bargaining
unit members;
C.
Discuss the grievances which have not been processed beyond the final step of the
grievance procedure when such discussions are mutually agreed to by the parties;
D.
Disseminate general information of interest to the parties;
E.
Give the Labor Council representatives the opportunity to share the view of their
members and/or make suggestions on subjects of interest'to their members;
F.
Discuss ways to improve efficiency and work performance; and
G.
Consider and discuss health, safety, and training matters.
Labor Council employee representatives attending
Section l 1.3 Reports
Labor/Management meetings shall not suffer a loss in pay for hours spent in such meetings, ifheld
during the employee's regular scheduled hours or work. The number of on duty employee
representatives will be limited to one whenever possible. Any changes in work orders will be
issued as soon as possible after the conclusion of the meeting. The Labor Council may submit a
written report as a result of such meetings. If minutes of a meeting are desired, an employee
representative will take such minutes. These minutes will be reviewed by the City and employee
representatives prior to dissemination to other employees.

ARTICLE 13
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
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Section 13 .1 Definition of a Grievance
A grievance is defined as a dispute or difference
involving the interpretation, application, or enforcement of the terms of this Agreement or of the
work rules.
No management prerogative reserved solely to the discretion of the City shall be made the subject of
a gnevance.
Section 13.2 Purpose of the Grievru,ce Procedure
The purpose of the grievance procedure
is to resolve disputes peacefolly and amicably without impeding the provisions of essential public
services. Therefore, should a grievance arise, there shall be no interruption or impeding of work,
on account of such differences, but an earnest effort shall be made to settle the matter promptly in
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. The grievance procedure herein and the
arbitration procedure outlined in Article 14 shall constitute the sole recourse for the settlement of
disputes involving the interpretation, application, or enforcement of the terms of this Agreement
except as provided for in Section 13 .16.
Both parties agree that they shall
Section l 3.3 Grievance to Be Settled Expeditiouslv
endeavor to make every effort to anticipate and diminish the causes of grievances, and when they
arise, to settle them (informally if possible) expeditiously at the lowest practicable level of the
grievance procedure.

An employee may file only his own personal grievance. The
Section 13 .4 Qualifications
aggrieved employee should personally sign his \vritten grievance, if he is capable of signing.
Otherwise, no grievance will be processed without the aggrieved employee's signature.
A grievance can be initiated by an aggrieved bargaining unit member. Where a group of
bargaining unit members desire to file a grievance involving a situation affecting each bargaining
unit member in the same or similar manner, the Labor Council or grievance chairman shall file a
class action grievance on behalf of all those affected.

The City or the Labor Council shall have the right to put its grievances through the
established grievance procedure. Initiation of any such grievance shall be undertaken at Step 2 of
the Grievance Procedure for the Labor Council and Step 3 for the City.
\Vb.en a grievance proceeding is
Section 13.5 Grievances of Non-Member Emplovees
held on an individually filed grievance by a bargaining unit employee who is not a member of the
Labor Council, the Labor Council shall receive notification when the grievance is filed. The final
resolution must be consistent with the tem1s of this agreement and the Labor Council representative
may be present at the final resolution.
Section 13.6 Pre-Existing Grievances
Grievances which arose prior to the signing of this
Agreement shall be processed under the terms of the Agreement in effect at the time of the alleged
gnevance.
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Sl!ction 13.7 Limit on Applicabilitv of Grievance Decision
Afinaldecisionreachedineither
of the first two steps of the grievance procedure shall be applicable to that grievance only.
When the Labor Council is used, the Labor
Section 13.8 Right to Withdraw Grievances
Council has the sole discretion to refuse to process, abandon, or settle grievances jointly with the
City, prior to binding arbitration, irrespective of the aggrieved employee's wishes. The employee
must sign a waiver to remove the Labor Council from the grievance process at any time after the
Labor Council has been requested to provide assistance. However, no grievance shall be abandoned
or settled by the Labor Council without first notifying the grievant of such action and allowing the
grievant to provide additional input.

If the Labor Council or a member fails to exhaust its remedies
Section 13.9 Time Limits
under the grievance procedure or to abide by the time limits with respect to each step of the
procedure, the grievance shall be deemed as resolved. Such failure/neglect to follow the procedure
and/or adhere to the prescribed time limits shall act as a bar to the filing of any future grievances
arising out of the same set of facts or circumstances.
If the City fails to exhaust its remedies under the Grievance Procedure or to abide by the time
limits with respect to each step of the procedure, the grievance shall automatically advance to the
next step. Arhitration may be requested within 21 calendar days from any missed deadline in the
third step procedures.
The time limits expressed in the Grievance and Arbitration Articles may be extended at any
step by written mutual consent. However, if the time limits are not mutually extended, the last
timely position shall prevail. The parties may agree by \Vritten mutual consent to skip certain steps
in the grievance procedure.
Labor Council members are prohibited from soliciting
Section 13 .10 Soliciting of Grievances
grievances. Any Labor Council member who is found to have solicited a grievance shall be subject
to disciplinary action. This does not limit the Labor Council Representative or a member of the
grievance committee from making an initial inquiry.
The processing and investigation
Section 13 .11 Processing and Investigation of Grievances
of grievances shall take place outside of regular working hours whenever possible. When this is not
possible, the grievant or Labor Council representative, if one is involved, shall be permitted leave
with pay during working hours, provided the grievant or Labor Council representative first obtains
the permission of his immediate supervisor. Such permission shall not be unreasonably withheld.
Section 13 .12 Presentation of Witnesses
Either party may present witnesses. Employees
who are appearing as witnesses for the Labor Council must receive permission to take time off with
pay if the hearing occurs during their normal work hours. If permission is withheld, any applicable
time limits shall thereby be extended for the period of time necessary to allow the grievant and/or
representative, if one is involved, time off to attend such meetings. Witnesses may be subject to
cross examination.
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Sectjon l 3.13 Labor Council To Investigate Grievances
When an Labor Council
representation is being used, the Labor Council shall make a reasonable investigation of any
grievance before it is submitted to the steps of the grievance procedure. All cases, shall be
investigated before being submitted to binding arbitration, in order to ascertain that the compliant is
justified and there is reasonable grounds to believe that the claim is true in fact. The Labor Council
shall submit a written report to the City upon filing for the next step in the grievance procedure if
their investigation reveals any new or different information regarding the grievance.
The grievance complaint shall set forth all the
Section 13.14 Proper Lamruage And Publicity
facts necessary to understand the issues involved. It shall be free from charges or language not
germane to the real issue or conducive to subsequent calm deliberation. So far as possible, the City
and the Labor Council shall avoid publicizing any grievance or complaint prior to the final
determination of the issue.

If the subject matter involves an employee
Section 13.15 Grievance Steps Eliminated
discharge or if both parties agree that any other subject is of an emergency nature, with respect to
an immediate necessity to move ahead, grievance Steps 1 and 2 shall be bypassed and the grievance
taken up directly at Step 3.
In any case, the hearing for such a set of circumstances shall be held within fifteen (15) work
days of the date of the receipt of the grievance by the Safety Director or his designee.

In the case of a dismissal or a situation where the parties agree in writing that a grievance
should bypass Steps 1 and 2, the time limit that such a grievance must be filed at Step 3 shall be five
(5) work days .
Section 13.16 Emplovee's Right
Where applicable in discipline cases, the employee
must first choose whether he wants to process his appeal through the Grievance/Arbitration
Procedures or through the Civil Service Commission. The initiation of any phase and/or of any step
of either of the two appeal systems shall be considered to be a waiver of the right to utilize the other
system. Both the Civil Service Commission and any duly appointed arbitrator must honor the
requirements of this section.
It is understood that this Agreement shall not in any way abridge the right of individual
employees to seek their own redress of grievances, or to refrain from using the Labor Council in the
process.
Section 13.17 Steps in the Grievance Procedure
STEP 1 Bureau Commander
A.
An employee who feels that his rights and privileges under this Agreement have been
violated, shall make verbal contact 'Nith the Bureau Commander within five (5)
calendar days from date of the occurrence of the action giving rise to the grievance or
five (5) calendar days from when the grievant first knew of the occurrence that gave
iise to the grievance. A waiver form must be presented by the grievant at this step.
B.
The Bureau Commander will give a written reply to the grievance within five (5)

Page 13 of 38

Zanesville & FOP Sec-Clerks 2021-2023 CBA Final (8-29-202 l draft)

C.

D.
E.

STEP 2
A.

B.
C.
D.

E.

STEP 3
A.

B.

C.

calendar days from the date the grievance was verbally submitted.
The object of this step is io informally resolve the complaint before it becomes a
formal grievance, therefore, unless mutually agreed to by the parties, any other parties
shall be excluded from the meeting between the employee and the Bureau
Commander.
A grievance which is not satisfactorily settled at Step 1 of the Grievance Procedure
shall be taken to Step 2.
The day of submission or response is not counted as a day of this step or any
succeeding step.
Police Chief
An employee who is not satisfied with the reply at Step 1 of the Grievance Procedure
shall file a ,witten grievance on the form provided, with the Police Chief (or
designee ). The grievant may use a Labor Council representative. If he does so ehese
choose to involve the Labor Council, then the Labor Council shall investigate the
grievance before proceeding to the next step. A waiver form must be presented by
the grievant at this step.
The employee must file his grievance within five (5) calendar days after the reply at
Step l has been given.
The Police Chief (or designee) shall sign and date stamp the grievance form and
return a signed copy to the grievant or his representative if one is involved.
The City has the right to seek out and require additional information, if it exists, to
that presented in the Grievance Notice in order to amicably handle the matter as
expeditiously as possible.
The Police Chief shall have fifteen ( 15) calendar days to submit his answer in writing
to the grievant or his representative if one is involved. Said grievant or his
representative shall sign and date the form upon receipt.
Safety Director
Should the grievant or the Labor Council representative, if one is involved, decide
that the reply of the Police Chief is unsatisfactory, the grievant or representative of
the Labor Council, if one is involved, shall, within five (5) calendar days, forward a
copy of the grievance and all other pe1tinent infom1ation to the City's Safety Director
or his designated representative. The Safety Director or his designee shall sign and
date the form upon receipt and return a signed copy to the grievant or his
representative if one is involved. A waiver form must be presented by the grievant at
this step.
The Safety Director or his designated representative shall arrange a hearing between
the grievant and, if the grievant so desires, the Labor Council representative and the
City within fifteen (15) calendar days unless otherwise mutually agreed to. The
Safety Director or his designee shall answer the grievance within ten (10) calendar
days after the hearing.
The City may require the hearing to be held outside normal working hours. Meetings
and/or conferences by the Labor Council and the grievant with respect to discussion
of the various actions associated with resolving such a matter, shall be scheduled for
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D.

the off duty hours of the participants. No compensation will be provided by the City
for the participants in such meetings and/or conferences. A hearing scheduled for a
time period during which the grievant and his representative would normally be on
duty will proceed as scheduled. The grievant and his representative shall be released
from duty during the time period of the hearing and shall not suffer any loss of pay or
benefits.
If a decision of the Safety Director or his designee is not satisfactory to the Labor
Council, arbitration must be requested in 'Nriting within twenty-one (21) calendar
days from the date the decision was rendered at the last step of the grievance
procedure.

ARTICLE 14
ARBITRATl ON
Section 14.1 Time Limit for Requestine: Arbitration
Unless both parties agree to by-pass one
or more of the steps, the entire grievance procedure must be exhausted before going to arbitration.
Arbitration must be requested in 'Nriting within twenty-one (21) calendar days from the date the
decision was rendered at the last step of the grievance procedure.
Should the Labor Council demand
Section 14.2 Delivery of Demand for Arbitration
arbitration, it shall give written notice to the City of Zanesville's Safety Director. Such demand
shall be signed by the grievant and/or the authorized representative of the Labor Council. Should
the City of Zanesville demand arbitration, it shall give written notice to the authorized
representative of the Labor Council or his designee. Such demand shall be signed by the authorized
representative of the City of Zanesville.
Section 14.3 Selecting the Arbitrator
Within twenty-one__(W days of the demand for
arbitration, a joint written request, instigated by the party demanding arbitration, shall be made to
the Federal Mediation Conciliation Services (District 15, Ohio) to submit the names of seven (7)
qualified arbitrators including personal history and arbitration experience of each. Upon receipt of
such list of arbitrators the parties shall attempt to select one from the list. Upon failure to do so, the
parties shall then proceed to alternately strike names from the list until one (1) name remains.
Determination as to which party shall have the privilege of striking a name from the list first
shall be resolved by the toss of a coin. The individual whose name remains on the list after the
other six (6) names have been removed shall be the arbitrator. The Federal Mediation Conciliation
Services shall be informed of the individual selected and request that such arbitrator be assigned to
the grievance.
Section 14.4 Submission Agreement
The Labor Council and the City shall agree in writing
upon the precise issues to be decided and submit the Statement to the arbitrator. Such agreed upon
issues shall then be submitted to the arbitrator. If the parties cannot agree on the issues to be
decided, each party shall state in writing the issue as he sees it and submit it to the arbitrator and
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other party. Included in its statement of issues, the appealing party shall cite the section or
sections of the Agreement it claims have been violated and the redress it expects from arbitration.
If one of the parties is of the opinion that a grievance concerning the interpretation or
application of the contract is not arbitrable, it shall notify the other party prior to the arbitration
hearing of its challenge and intent to raise the issue of arbitrability at the arbitration hearing. At the
hearing, the first question to be placed before the arbitrator shall be whether or not the issue is
arbitrable and within his/her jurisdiction to decide. The arbitrator will take the question of
arbitrability under advisement, and the same arbitrator will hear the grievance on its merits.

Section 14.5. Arbitrator Shall Arranl!e Hearings The arbitrator shall arrange for any hearings or
investigations he deems to be necessary as soon as possible after he is notified of his selection.
Arbitration proceedings shall be conducted under the Voluntary Labor
Section 14.6 Procedures
Arbitration Rules of the Federal Mediation Conciliation Services except as modified by the
provisions of this Agreement.
Section 14.7 Limits on Arbitrator's Authoritv
A
No decision by an arbitrator shall infringe upon:
(1)
The obligation of the City as expressed or intended by the provisions of Ohio
Law.
(2)
The statutory obligations of the City.
(3)
The legal principles expressed by a-an Ohio Supreme Court determination or
by any other court of competent jmisdiction, or in the general body of legal
principles which are applicable to municipalities and their municipal
functions.
(4)
Any federal, state, or municipal law.
B.
The arbitrator may affirm, disaffirm or modify disciplinary penal ties imposed by the
City.
C.
The arbitrator shall not change wage rates already in effect within the Agreement.
D.
The arbitrator's award shall not be retroactive for a period prior to the period covered
by the grievance.
E.
The arbitrator shall conduct a fair and impartial hearing on the grievances, hearing
and recording testimony from both parties and applying the rules of the F.M.C.S., or
the S.E.R.B. The arbitrator shall not have the authority to add to, delete from, or
modify any provisions of this Agreement.
F.
The arbitrator shall expressly confine himself to the precise issues cited in the
submission as per Section 14.4 and shall have no authority or privilege to determine
any other issue not so submitted to him. Nor shall the arbitrator have the authority or
privilege to submit observations or declarations of opinion which are not directly
essential in reaching a decision on the precise subject matter.
G.
The arbitrator may not make an award which in effect grants either party that which it
was unable clearly to secure during past collective bargaining negotiations.
H.
An arbitration award shall not be used as a precedent for any subsequent case, but
may be cited in support of the parties' position.
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I.

J.

The arbitrator shall not grant relief that ex tends beyond the termination date of this
Agreement.
The arbitrator's decision and award will be in writing and will specifically state the
rationale for the decision. Said decision shall be mailed to the Labor Council and the
Mayor of the City or his designee, within thirty (30) days from the date the record is
closed. When post-hearing briefs from the parties are requested, the record is not
closed until the parties have submitted such briefs.

Thearbitratorsballhearonlyone
Section 14.8 Number of Grievances to Be Heard at One Time
grievance at a time unless both parties agree to consolidated two or more grievances.

Section 14.9 Withdrawal of a Dispute
After a dispute on which the arbitrator is empowered to
rule hereunder has been referred to him, such dispute may be withdrawn by either party. The party
requesting the withdrawal shall bear the entire cost of the arbitration, unless a settlement is reached
in which case the parties shall share the cost equally.
Section 14.10 Arbitration Limited to Life of Contract
arbitration that arose during the life of the contract.
Section 14.11 DamafZes
of monetary relief.

Disputes may only be submitted to

The arbitrator shall have the authority to grant damages and other types

Section 14.12 Decision Final and Binding
The arbitrator's award shall be final and binding
on both parties and may be enforced in any court of competent jurisdiction except as otherwise
herein specified.
The fees of the arbitrator and the rent, if any, for the
Section 14.13 Cost of Arbitration
hearing room shall be borne equally by the parties. The expenses of any non-employee witnesses
shall be borne, if at all, by the party calling them. The fees of a court reporter shall be paid by the
party asking for one; however, such fee shall be split equally if both parties desire a reporter or
request a copy of the transcript.
Section 14.14 Emplovees Attending Arbit.ration Hearing The grievant, the Labor Council
Representative, and employee witnesses, called by either party, who appear at an arbitration hearing
during their working hours shall not suffer any loss in pay. Member witnesses, other than the
grievant and grievant representative, called by the Labor Council, will be permitted time off, with
pay, if such time off is during regularly assigned work hours, provided that the needs of the City, the
Department and the safety of the citizenry are not compromised. The Labor Council shall provide
to the City a list of member witnesses to be called.

ARTICLE 15
PERSONNEL FILES
Section 15 .1 Personnel File
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A.

B.

C.
D.

Every member shall be allowed to review his personnel file at any reasonable time
upon written request. A member may also authorize his attorney to review the
personnel file. Such request shall be made to the Chief and review of the file shall be
made in the presence of the Chief or designated representative.
If upon examining his personnel file, any member has reason to believe that there are
inaccuracies in documents contained therein, the member may write a memorandum
to the Chief with a copy to the Safety Director, explaining the alleged inaccuracy.
The Chief shall attach the memorandum to the document in the file and shall note
thereon his agreement or disagreement with the memorandum's contents.
Any employee's signature on a document shall mean he has seen the document and
not that he agrees with its content unless it is so stated on the document.
Records of discipline shall cease to have force and effect according to the following
schedule:
36 months
Suspensions
12 months
Written Reprimands
The records shall not be destroyed but placed in a separate file for public records
purposes.
Records of commendations and awards shall not have force and effect for appeals of
discipline after a period of 24 months and shall remain in the employee's personnel
file.

E.

In any case in which an action of record is disaffirmed through the Grievance
Procedure, the member's persom1el file shall clearly reflect such disaffirmance.

ARTICLE 16
RIGHTS OF EMPLOYEES, DISCIPLINE
Section 16. l Policy
The City and the Labor Council agree that a clearly written
discipline policy will serve to promote fairness and equality in the work place, and will minimize
potential misunderstanding among employees in disciplinary matters. Furthermore, the City and
the Labor CoW1c1l agree that the procedures, set forth below, shall be consistently applied in
order to effectively and fairly correct unsatisfactory employee behavior.
Section 16.2 Classification of Complaints
Administrative: Complaints initiated internally against members of the
A.
department.
Personnel: Complaints made by the public against members of the department.
B.
Section 16.3 Comnla1nts
Complaints - General
A.
(1)
It is agreed that citizens will be encouraged to bring forward legitimate
complaints regarding misconduct by departmental employees and that
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(2)

(3)

such will be received courteously and handled efficiently by all concerned.
In addition, both the Labor Council and the City agree that all personnel
will assist and cooperate in the processing of citizen complaints consistent
with established procedures.
Complaints shall be accepted from any source, whether made in person, by
mail or over the telephone, so long as the complaint contains sufficient
information to warrant an investigation. Complaints from anonymous
sources without corroborative evidence after due inquiry shall be deemed
unfounded.
Citizens alleging misconduct on the part of a division member will be
requested to sign the complaint form.

Section 16.4 Internal Investigation
Procedure - General
A.
( 1)
Questioning or interviewing of an employee accused of misconduct will be
conducted or scheduled at a reasonable time, preferably while the member is
on duty.
(2)
The length of the interview or interrogation session(s) will be reasonable,
with interruptions provided for personal necessities, meals, telephone calls
and rest.
(3)
Interrogations/interviews will normally be conducted at the Zanesville Safety
Center or other appropriate location.
(4)
An accused employee who refuses to answer questions or participate in an
investigation shall be advised that such conduct if continued will be the basis
for a charge of insubordination.
(5)
Prior to the commencement of any interrogation-interview of an employee
accused of misconduct, said employee shall be advised of the nature of the
investigation and the allegations made against him.
(6)
Prior to questioning and upon request, an accused employee will be provided a
reasonable opportunity to review any documents previously submitted by him
that are specifically related and narrowly confined to the circumstances
surrounding the allegations made against him.

(7)

Prior to an employee being asked questions during an internal non-criminal
investigation which may lead to suspension without pay or termination ofthe
employee questioned, that employee shall be informed of his right to have
Labor Council representation. The Labor Council representative shall be the
union steward for the employee's bargaining unit or the steward's designee. If
after a reasonable time (2 hours) to acquire the se1vices of a Labor Council
representative, the grievant fails and or neglects to do so, the investigation by
the City will proceed without a Labor Council representative.
(a)
A bargaining unit member who is called upon to serve as a
representative to an accused employee while both are on duty shall be
released from the requirements and responsibilities of such duty while
he is assisting such employee.
(b)
Such representative shall not suffer the loss of any compensation
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and/or benefits.
Such relief from duty is contingent upon the approval of his immediate
supervisor, which will not be unreasonably withheld.
(d)
Bargaining unit members who are not on duty and are summoned to
act as representatives of accused employees shall be compensated as
provided for in the call-in section of the contract.
Off duty bargaining unit members who are summoned to represent an
(e)
accused employee are not relieved from reporting to their regularly
assigned duties, except as specified in this Article.
The Chief of Police, based upon a substantial objective basis to believe that
an employee may be withholding information relevant to the matter being
investigated, may require that employee to submit to a polygraph.

( c)

(8)

If the employee refused to submit to the polygraph or to cooperate with the
operator, an adverse inference may be taken from the refusal. However, the
refusal of the employee to submit shall not be the sole basis for disciplinary
action either in the initial investigation or any subsequent charge of
insubordination based upon the refusal.
The member shall be entitled to a union representative during the preinterview and post-interview stages of the polygraph examination. Any such
polygraph examination shall only be conducted by a certified operator that is
not an employee of the City. No disciplinary action shall be taken by the
Employer based solely on the results of such tests.
B.

Fmmal Statements (Administrative and Non-Criminal)
(1)
Fonnal Statements other than the initial interview/inquiry, of employees
accused of misconduct shall be recorded.
(2)
With reasonable notice to the Police Chief (or designee), the accused
employee will be provided the oppmtunity to listen to and/or review the
results of such recorded statement and prepare personal notes with respect to
such recording.
(3)
With reasonable notice, copies of the accused employee's formal recorded
statement, tape either recorded or transcribed, if such is made, will be
provided to the accused employee if so requested by the affected employee.
Costs incurred with respect to preparation, duplication, copying, etc. shall be
absorbed by the employee so requesting.
(4)
Under those circumstances in which an attorney from or assigned by the City
Law Director's office is a participant in the investigation of an accused
employee complaint, said accused employee shall have the right to be
accompanied by an attorney of his own choosing. The cost incurred for
representation by the personal attorney must be borne by the bargaining unit
or the employee so hiring. Acquiring representation by a personal attorney
shall not disrupt or cause unreasonable delay of such proceedings.
(5)
A bargaining unit member who is the subject of a criminal investigation shall
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(6)

be advised of his constitutional rights as provided by law.
A bargaining w1it member who is the subject of a criminal invest igation and
who chooses, after being so advised of his constitutional rights, to exercise
them, will not be charged with insubordination for refusing or declining to
answer questions with respect to the alleged criminal conduct.

C. Miscellaneous Provisions
(1)
Complaints lodged against a bargaining unit member, when determined by the
Chief of Police (or designee) to be unfounded, shall not be made a part of the
employee's personnel file and shall not be used in any subsequent disciplinary
procedure .
(2)
Compensation for employees participating in a disciplinary investigation
during their off-time shall be as specified in the call-in section of this
contract.
Section 16.5 Disciplinarv Procedure
No employee shall be disciplined except for just cause. Warnings or reprimands that
A.
do not involve a reduction in pay or position, suspension or discharge are subject to
the grievance procedure but may not be appealed to the Arbitration Procedure.
The principles of progressive disciplinary action will be followed with respect to
B.
minor offenses. It shall be corrective and applied in a uniform manner. Normal
progressive discipline shall consist of a documented oraJ warning, written reprimand,
short term suspension, and either a long term suspension, or discharge.
The City shall take corrective action deemed necessary by the circumstances on a
C.
case-by-case basis.
The City agrees not to suspend, or discharge an employee without first conducting a
D.
hearing. This hearing is to be held between the City, the employee and a Labor
Council representative if the employee so desires. Hearings where practical shall be
conducted at hours reasonably related to the employee's shift, preferable during his
work hours.
The City agrees that all disciplinary procedures shall be carried out in private and in a
E.
businesslike manner.
In cases where a suspension of thirty (30) days or less has been imposed on a
F.
bargaining unit employee, the Employer may offer the employee the option to forfeit
accrued leave time (vacation or compensatory time). The forfeiture shall be one (1)
hour of leave for each hour of proposed suspension. The type of leave shall be the
employee's choice. The forfeiture ofleave shall constitute conective action of record
and shall be placed in the employee's personnel file. The forfeiture of leave shall
constitute the final resolution of the departmental charges. Once accepted by the
employee, forfeiture of leave is not subject to appeal.
The City shall not initiate the public disclosure of any disciplinary action taken or
G.
proposed against any employee unless and until criminal charges have also been
filed.
In disciplinary matters involving the imposition of a specified time period of
H.
suspension or discharge of an employee, the effective date for the commencement of
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I.
J.

the time limits that govern the appeal of that suspension or discharge shall be as
specified in the grievance procedure as per Articles 13 and 14 of this contract.
An appeal of an imposed suspension shall act as a stay of that suspension until such
time as a decision is rendered with respect to the appeal.
The City shall within a reasonable time, given the circumstances of an alleged
infraction, complete its investigation and file charges for disciplinary action against
an employee. In instances where the investigation cannot be completed within the
time limits stated above, an additional fifteen (15) day period may be granted by
murual agreement of the City and the affected employee or Labor Council
Representative, except that in no case shall the City have more than sixty (60) days to
investigate and file charges. The Labor Council and its members agree to assist in
the expediting of investigations of alleged actions, incidents and occurrences.

ARTICLE 17
DRUG/ ALCOHOL TESTING
Section 17 .1 Employees T l:S[ed
Drug/alcohol testing may be conducted on employees at
random, post-incident or reasonable suspicion.
For random testing, the City shall contract with a laboratory meeting the requirements of
Section 17.2. Random tests will be conducted no more than four times per calendar year.
A bargaining unit employee may of his own volition, even if not ordered to do so, undergo a
drug and/or alcohol screening test if he is involved in an on duty incident or accident involving
bodily injury, extensive property damage or death. Testing done under these circumstances will be
treated in the same manner as if the employee had been ordered to undergo screening.

All drug screening tests shall be conducted by medical
Section 17.2 Test Requirements
laboratories meeting the standards of the National Institute of Drug Abuse and the National
Institutes of Health. No test shall be considered positive until it has been confirmed by a gas
Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry full scan test or its equivalent. The procedures utilized by the
Employer and testing laboratory shall include an evidentiary chain of custody control. All samples
collected shall be contained in two (2) separate containers for use in the prescribed testing
procedures. All procedures shall be outlined in writing and this outline shall be followed in all
situations arising nnder this Article.
Alcohol testing shall be done in the same manner as to detect
Section 17.3 Alcohol Tests
drivers operating a motor vehicle under the influence. A positive result of a blood alcohol
concentration of .03% or above shall entitle the Employer to proceed with sanctions as set forth in
this Article.
Section 17.4 Test Ri:sults
A.
The results of the testing shall be delivered to the Employer and the employee tested.
An employee whose confirmatory test result is positive shall have the right to request
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B.

a certified copy of the testing results in which the vendor shall affirm that the test
results were obtained using the approved protocol methods. The employee shall
provide a signed release for disclosure of the testing results. Refusal to submit to the
testing provided for tmder this Agreement may be grounds for discipline.
The Employer may suspend the employee without loss of pay before the time the
confirmatory test results are complete. If the screening test and confirmato1y test are
positive, the Employer may discipline the employee. The use of illegal substances,
on or off duty, will ordinarily result in termination. The improper use of prescription
drugs and/or alcohol may result in a lesser discipline, depending upon the relevant
circumstances.

Section 17.5 Confitmalorv Tests
1.
If a drug screening test is positive, a confirmatory test shall be conducted
utilizing the fluid from no more than two of the three containers collected in
the manner prescribed above.
In the event the second test confirms the results of the first test, the Employer
2.
may proceed with the sanctions as set forth in this Article.
,,
In
the event that the second test contradicts the result of the first test, the
.J.
Employer may request a third test in accordance with the procedures
prescribed above. The results of this test, if positive, shall allow the
Employer to proceed with sanctions as set forth in this Article. If the results
are negative, the employee shall be given the benefit of the doubt and no
sanctions shall be imposed.
Section 17 .6 Laboratories
A list of two (2) testing laboratories shall be maintained by the
Employer. These laboratories shall conduct any testing directed by the Employer.

If the testing required above has produced a positive result, the
Section 17 .7 Rehabilitation
Employer may take disciplinary action and/or require the employee to participate in any
rehabilitation or detoxification program that is covered by the employee's health insurance. An
employee who participates in a rehabilitation or detoxification program shall be allowed to use sick
time, compensatory days, vacation leave, and personal leave days for a period of the rehabilitation
or detoxification program.

If no such leave credits are available, the employee shall be placed on medical leave of
absence without pay for the period of the rehabilitation or detoxification program. Upon
completion of such program, and upon receiving results from a retest demonstrating that the
employee is no longer abusing a controlled substance, the employee may be returned to his former
position. Such employee may be subject to periodic retesting upon his return to his position for a
period of one (1) year from the date of his return to work. Any employee in a rehabilitation or
detoxification program in accordance with this Article will not lose any seniority or benefits, should
it be necessary for the employee to be placed on medical leave of absence without pay for a period
not to exceed ninety (90) days.
Section 17 .8 Discipline

If the employee refuses to undergo rehabilitation or detoxification, or if
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he tests positive during a retesting within one (1) year after his return to work from such a program,
the employee shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of his
employment.
Section 17 .9 Testing Cost
Costs of all drug screening tests and confirmatory tests shall be
borne by the Employer except that any test initiated at the request of the employee shall be at the
employee's expense.
Section 17 .10 Confidentialitv
All tests results and actions taken under or pursuant to this
Article shall be kept confidential in accordance with and subject to state and federal law.

ARTICLE 18
ORDINANCES. RULES Al\iO REGULATIONS
Section 18.1 Rules and Regulation
The City agrees that Rules and Regulations of the
Department shall be furnished to all members of the bargaining unit in written form.
To the extent possible the City agrees that amendments to the Rules and Regulations shall be
provided to the Labor Council i.n advance of their implementation. The Labor Council or any
member of the bargaining unit may request a meeting of the Labor - Management Committee to
seek clarification or to present alternative viewpoints with respect to such amendments.
The Rules and Regulations shall be applied and interpreted consistently by the City and may
not violate any provision of this Agreement.
Nothing herein shall be construed in any manner as a limitation of the City's right to alter its
work rules, policies or directives.

ARTICLE 19
REPORTING FOR WORK
Section 19. l Lateness
Employees are to be punctual at all times.
A
B.
Lateness may result in progressive disciplinary action.
of tardiness ofless than six (6) minutes shall be considered in determining
Instances
C.
chronic lateness.
In cases where the disciplinary action described above fails to correct an employee's
D.
chronic lateness, additional disciplinary action may be taken.
Section 19.2 Notice of Absence
Any employee who is unable to report for work at his assigned time for any reason
A.
shall notify the proper designated authority as soon as possible before his assigned
starting time and no later than one ( 1) hour before his starting time. Notice of
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B.

absence may be given through another person only if the employee is physically
unable to provide the proper notice. When notice is not provided the employee will
not be paid for his time off unless he can furnish compelling evidence that
circumstances beyond his control prevented giving proper notice. An employee who.
unless incapacitated, is absent three (3) consecutive work days without notifying the
City, or without valid reason, for failure to so notify the City, will be considered to
have voluntarily resigned .
An employee who, unless incapacitated, is absent from the job without prior notice to
the City and/or failure to give the City a legitimate reason for his absence after
returning to work shall be subject to the following penalties:
First Offense - 5 days suspension without pay
Second Offense - Dismissal

ARTICLE 20
WORKING CONDITIONS
Section 20 .1 Protection of Employees Safety and Health
The City will continue to make
reasonable provisions for the safety and health of its employees . The Labor Council agrees that it
will direct its members to use the protective devices, wearing apparel, and other equipment provided
by the City for the protection of employees from injury. The Labor Council also agrees that it will
encourage its members to promptly report conditions in the City's facilities that might be dangerous
to employees and the public and to do all in their power to make City property and equipment safe,
sanitary, and dependable. Any injury or accident, however minor, shall be immediately reported to
the Police Chief or his authorized representative.

An employee leaving the service of the City, whether
Section 20.2 Return of City Propertv
through resignation, retirement, layoff, or discharge, is responsible for returning any City property
which he may have in his possession. Failure to return City property may result in the employee's
final check being held until such return is made or deductions may be made for the value of the
property.
ARTICLE 21
HOURS OF WORK A.l"'\JD OVERTIME
Section 21. l Intent
This Article is intended to define the hours of a work day, hours of a
work week and to define the basis for the calculation of overtime.
Section 21.? Work Dav and Work Week
A.
A work day shall consist of eight (8) hours during a scheduled work shift. Except to
accommodate change of shifts or days off, a work week shall consist of five (5) work
days followed by two (2) consecutive days off.
B.
Should the Chief of Police decide to implement a four-ten schedule, such schedule
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will consist of four (4) ten-hour days, or eight (8) such days per pay period. The
chief shall provide at least seven (7) days notice to all employees affected by any
such change.
Section 21.3 Overtime
All hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in one (1) week shall be paid at one
A.
and one-half ( 1-1/2) times the employee's regular straight-time hourly rate.
For purposes of this section, "hours worked" is defined as hours actually worked plus
B.
paid leave time, except that sick leave and unworked hours compensated pursuant to
Section 23.5 shall not be counted as "hours worked."
For purposes of computing overtime, the work week shall begin Friday at 12:00 AM.
C.
and end the following Thursday at 11 :59 P .M.-;- This work week shall be used for
payroll purposes only and shall not be construed as establishing the actual days of
work for any employee or group of employees.
Overtime work shall include only that work performed by an employee at the
D.
direction of the Police Chief ( or designee ).
E.
If an emergency is declared by someone with authority to do so, and a bargaining unit
member is ordered to work before or after his normal hours of work, he shall be paid
double-time for all such hours. In any other case the employee so ordered to work
shall be compensated at the appropriate rate of pay.
F.
Overtime shall be based on 1/10 of an hour increments.
An employee, at his option, may elect to accrue
Section 21.4 Compensatorv Time Bank
compensatory time at the rate of one-and-one-half (1-1/2) hours off for each hour of overtime work,
and place such time in a comp-time bank. Once the employee has placed such time in the bank he
must give a twenty-four (24) hour advance notice to the Chief of Police for comp time leave, except
that such comp time would be permissible with a one (1) hour notice if the supervisor so granting
such leave is of the opinion that doing so would not unduly disrupt the operations of the Department.
Compensatory time may be taken in half-hour increments. The Employer shall have the sole
discretion for granting such leave, but such denial should be for just cause and not mere
inconvenience. The maximum accrual of compensatory time shall be 150 hours.
Upon separation for any reason, the employee shall be paid for any
Section 21.5 Pav Out
accumulation of accrued compensatory time.
Section 21.6 - Pyramiding There shall be no pyramiding of overtime or other rates of pay or other
compensation with any other pay rates unless specifically required by the terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 22
WAGES
Section 22. l Salaries. Wages. and Salarv Ranges The hourly pay rates for the pos1t10n
classifications of Police Secretary and Police Records Clerk shall be in accordance with those set
forth in Appendix I. -;-
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Section 22.2 Automatic Pay Increments
A. Pay increments f o r ~ (new date 2022) shall not be retroactive and shall become
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Zanesville & FOP Sec-Clerks 2021-2023 CBA Final (8-29-2021 draft)

Section 22.2 Automatic Pav Increments
A.
Pay increments for 2015 shall not be retroactive and shall become effective after the
contract is ratified. Step increments in 2016-2017 shall be that upon hire, employees
shall be assigned to the lowest step in the proper classification. Each January
thereafter employees will receive an increase to the next higher step in their
classification.
B.
Pay increases in 2015 shall not be retroactive and shall become effective after the contract is
ratified. Pay increases in 2016 and 2017 shall be effective on the first day of the first full pay period
in January.
Section 2" .3 Longevitv Pav
The City of Zanesville will grant longevity pay each year to permanent full-time
A.
employees covered by this Agreement in accordance with the following schedule:

B.
C.

D.

E.

YEARS OF SERVICE
LONGEVITY PAY
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30
5
2% of Previous Annual Payroll Earnings
9
3% of Previous Annual Payroll Earnings
13
4% of Previous Annual Payroll Earnings
16
5% of Previous Annual Payroll Earnings
Payment is to be calculated on the previous annual payroll earnings.
September 30 of each year in which the payment is to be made shall be used in
calculating years of service for longevity pay .
Payment shall be made in a lump sum during October of each year and shall be
separate from the employee's regular paycheck. Longevity pay shall be taxed as if
earned over the entire payroll year (26 pay periods).
Employees who are on the payroll as of June 3 0 will be entitled to a prorated share of
their longevity pay even though they may terminate prior to October 1. This shall
apply to termination under honorable circumstances. The prorated pay shall be based
on the number of completed pay periods in the final year of service divided by
twenty-six (26) and multiplied by the longevity pay due for the entire year.

Section 22.4 Call-In Pav/Court Pav
A.
Call-in pay shall be provided when an employee is required to report for work or to
report for scheduled or ordered court appearances at times other than his regular shift
or hours of work regardless of whether or not work is available or the court case is
actually conducted.
B.
An employee called in under Section A shall receive three (3) hours pay at his base
rate (straight time) or pay for time actually worked at the applicable rate whichever is
greater.
C.
Call-in pay shall not be provided for: (1) work extending beyond the end of an
employee's scheduled shift; (2) work before and continuing into his scheduled shift;
(3) situations in which employees are summoned back to work to correct errors or
incomplete task during his assigned duty hours.
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D.

E.
F.
G.

Employees who fall under Section C only shall be paid at the applicable hourly rate,
except that for scheduled training periods and scheduled department meetings
employees shall receive one ( 1) hour's pay at his base rate ( straight time) or pay for
time actually worked at the applicable rate, whichever is greater.
"Scheduled" as listed in Section Conly shall mean a minimum of 48 hours notice.
An employee may, at his option, receive compensatory time off in lieu of pay for
call-in or court appearances.
Call-in time for which payment is rendered shall not be used for computing the forty
(40) hour work week for premiwn pay. Any time actually worked under each call-in
that exceeds 2 hours shall be used in computing the forty (40) hour week for
premium pay. Hours worked as defined in Section 2.3(B) shall be used to compute
the forty (40) hours work week for premium pay.

There shall be no pyramiding of overtime or other rates of pay or other
Section 22.5 Pyramiding
compensation with any other pay rates unless specifically required by the terms of this Agreement.
The City, at its sole discretion, shall determine when
Section 22.6 Hazardous Weather
hazardous weather conditions exist. If City Hall is closed by the Mayor due to hazardous weather
conditions or the police chief or his designee deem the weather too hazardous for travel, members of
this unit shall not be required to report to work and shall be compensated for all the hours of the
regular shift the employee was scheduled to work but did not work due to such closing.

ARTICLE 23
VACATION/HOLlDA VS/PERSONAL LEA VE
Section 23 .1 Accrual of Vacation
A.
Permanent full-time employees covered by this Agreement shall accumulate vacation leave
with pay in accordance with the following schedule for each full pay period of service:
Vacation Hours Accrued
Years of Service
Per Pav Period Worked
First year
3.08 hours
After 1 year
3.39 hours
After 5 years
4.26 hours
5.18 hours
After 10 years
6.10 hours
After 15 years
After 20 years
6.72 hours

B.

Each employee shall be required to take vacation during each year except that upon written
approval of the Mayor, vacation may be accumulated up to the maximum time which is
accruable i.n a two-year period. Under no circumstances will an employee be allowed to take
vacation in advance .

Section 23.2 Vacation Preference
All vacations shall be taken with the prior approval of the
Police Chief. Whenever possible, vacation preference will be based on seniority. Vacation shall be
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scheduled so as to meet the operating requirements of the City and the preference of the employees.
Denial of vacation leave shall be for just cause and not mere inconvenience. Beginning February 1st
of each year annual vacations of up to four (4) consecutive weeks may be requested and shall be by
seniority. Once each covered employee has the opportunity to choose a vacation the vacation list shall
be rotated in the same manner two (2) more times. Each employee may choose a maximum of two
(2) additional weeks during each rotation . A maximum of six (6) weeks vacation may be requested in
the three sign-up rotations. Annual vacations shall be scheduled by March 31 of each year. No more
than three (3) separate blocks of time may be used as annual vacation. After March 31, there shall be
no bumping of scheduled vacations. The vacation period for scheduling will be from April 1 to
March 31 of the next year. Requested time off for other than annual vacations shall be subrni tted no
sooner than thirty (30) days prior to the day requested and will be on a first come, first serve basis.
Except in emergencies once a request is granted, it shall not subsequently be denied .
Section 23 .3 Other Considerations
A.
An employee requesting vacation time use must give a twenty-four (24) hour advance
notice to the Chief of Police except that vacation usage would be permissible with a one (1)
hour notice if the Police Chief is of the opinion that doing so would not unduly disrupt the
operations of the Police Department. The Employer shall have the sole discretion for
granting such leave, but denial should be for a valid reason and not mere inconvenience.
B.
Vacation time may be charged out in one (1) hour increments.
C.
Vacation hours shall be compensated at the employee's current base pay rate.
Section 23.4 Employees Not on ihe Active Payroll
Employees not on the active payroll are
not entitled to accrue vacation leave unless such absence is caused by an injury sustained while
acting in their capacity as a Bargaining unit employee.
Section 23.5 Court Inten-uption of Vacation
In the event an employee finds his annually
scheduled vacation interrupted by scheduled court appearances, management will compensate with a
minimum of five (5) hours compensatory time or a minimum of eight (8) hours regular pay. The
term annually scheduled vacation is defined as any vacation scheduled during the scheduling rotation
described in Section 23 .2 above.
Section ?3 .6 Vacation Pav-Out
Upon separation, an employee may cash in such unused
accumulation of vacation up to a maximum of time accrued in a two-year pe1iod.
Section 23 .7 Holidavs With Pay
(A)
The following shall be holidays with pay:
l. New Year's Day
2. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
3. President's Day
4. Memorial Day
5. Juneteenth
6. Independence Day
7. Labor Day
8. Columbus Day
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9. Veterans Day
10. Thanksgiving Day
11. Friday after Thanksgiving
12. Christmas Day
13, 14, 15. Three personal holidays selected by the employee with prior approval of the
employee's supervisor. An employee is eligible to take a personal holiday after completion
of ninety (90) days of service.
(B)

(C)

When one of the holidays listed above falls on a Sunday, the next following Monday shall be
observed as a holiday. When one of the holidays listed above falls on a Saturday, the
preceding Friday shall be observed as a holiday. Holidays occurring during vacation shall
not be counted as a day of vacation.
An employee required to work on the day observed as a holiday shall be granted premium
pay at time-and-one-half or compensatory time off at time-and-one-half for actual hours
worked.
ARTICLE 24
INSURANCE SCHEDULE

Section 24.1 Insurance
A.
Insurance Plan
The City of Zanesville will offer the same group medical,
prescription, dental and vision plan for the employee and eligible family members that it
provides to the elected and unaffiliated employees of the City of Zanesville. It is agreed
that the schedule of benefits shall be the same as for all other City employees.
B.
Spouse If the spouse of a city employee is employed and is eligible for employersponsored health coverage with said employer, he or she must enroll in that particular
health plan. If the spouse cannot obtain coverage through his or her employer until a
certain date or open enrollment period, the spouse will be covered under the City's plan
until he or she can obtain coverage through his or her employer. The spouse must
provide documentation to the City that he or she is not eligible for coverage. Employees
whose spouse has health insurance coverage through an employer shall receive up to one
thousand five hundred dollars ($1,500) per year stipend. If an employee's spouse would

be required to pay more than 50% of the insurance premium through their employer, he
or she would be allowed to remain on the City' s plan. Spouses may also remain on the
City's plan under secondary coverage.
C.
Health Insurance Committee The City shall establish a health care committee
comprised of the Budget and Finance Director, the Mayor, the Law Director, one
representative from City Council, t-..vo representatives from A.F.S.C.M.E., two
representatives from the F.O.P/O.L.C. bargaining unit, one representative from the
I.A.F.F. and one representative from the unaffiliated employees. This committee shall
meet regularly to review the content of the health care plan for the City and shall explore
alternative health care plans, cost saving measures, and proposed changes to cun-ent
coverage before changes are made.
(D)
Employee Contribution to Premiums. Employee contribution for health care coverage
shall not exceed in 2021 12%, 2022 13%, 2023 14% of the fully funded rates provided to
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the City by the plan- s third-party administrator at the annual plan renewal with a
premium caps per pay period contributions by employees of:
1. 2021 single $44.58 and family $124.64
11. 2022 single $55 and family $145
111. 2023 single $65 and family $165.
Section 24.2 Changes in Insurance Status
Employees must report any family, marital, or
Medicare status changes, which affect their health insurance coverage, to the City Auditor
immediately following such a change. An employee failing to do so is liable for back payments to
the City for additional premiums paid by the City on the employee's behalf
Section 24.3 Paid Insurance While on Workers' Compensation
While an officer is on workers
compensation as a direct result of his employment with the City, the City of Zanesville agrees to
continue paying his insurance premiums for up to one year, provided that the employee continues
paying his or her share of the insurance cost established in Section 24. l(D).
Section 24.4 Life Insurance Clause
The City will provide a life insurance policy of twenty
thousand dollars ($20,000). It is the employee's responsibility to notify the City of a change in the
policy' s beneficiary.
Section 24.5 lnsmance G1ievances
A grievance alleging violation of the terms of this
Article shall proceed in1mediately to Step 3 in the grievance procedure pursuant to Section 13.15.
While decisions made by the City's insurance provider while processing claims in accordance with
the City's health plan are not grievable, issues involving whether or not the City changed its plan in
violation of this Article are grievable.

ARTICLE 25
SICK LEAVE
Section 25. I Accwnulation of Sick Leave Each employee shall accumulate sick leave with pay at
the rate of 4.6 hours for each eighty (80) hours in paid status except that the maximum accrual of
sick leave shall not exceed 4.6 hours per period. Accumulation of sick leave shall be unlimited.
Section 25.2 Uses of Sick Leave
An employee may use sick leave:
A.
(1)
in case of his own illness or exposure to contagious disease;
(2)
injury (on duty injuries after injury leave is used up);
(3)
for attendance to members of his household and/or the employee' s mother or father
whose illness or injury requires the care of the employee.
(4)
In the event of death in the employee's immediate family, a maximum of three (3)
days of bereavement leave may be used for this purpose per occurrence.
Bereavement leave will not be taken from sick leave. In certain circumstances the
Police Chief may authorize more than three (3) days of bereavement leave.
Employees may use up to three (3) days for bereavement leave for one time each
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calendar year for another individual with whom the employee has a relationship.
B.
As used in this section, the term "household" shall mean two or more persons living together
in a single dwelling unit and the term, "immediate family" shall mean husband, wife, child, stepchild,
parent, stepparent, grandparent, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother or sister of the employee and
shall also mean grandparents, brother or sister of the employee's spouse.
C.
All sick leave shall be charged in multiples of one-half(l/2) hour.
Section 25.3 Request for Sick Leave Pay
Employees who are absent must request sick
leave pay in writing upon returning to work. In the written request, the employee must state his
reason for being absent. A doctor's certificate may be required, at the discretion of the Employer
stating the nature of the illness and the period of confinement after the employee is absent for more
than two (2) work days. The Police Chief may require an employee to furnish a doctor's certificate
for a lesser absence ifthere is reason to believe that the use of sick leave is being abused.
Section 25.4 Minimum Service for Sick Leaves
There shall be no minimum service required
prior to using sick leave. An employee may use sick leave as soon as sick leave hours are accrued.
Section ?5.5 Sick Leave Paid at Base Rate Pay for sick leave shall be at the employee's current
base rate of pay.
Section 25.6 Unpaid Leave
When an employee receives his last check for sickness or
non-duty disability, he may, at the employer's discretion, be placed on leave without pay for a period
not to exceed six__(fil months. If at the end of that time, said employee is still unable to return to
work, his employment shall be terminated.
Section ?5.7 Outside Emplovment While on Sick Leave
An employee who is self-employed or
works for another Employer while on sick leave within sixteen (16) hours after the start of their shift,
shall be subject to disciplinary action including dismissal.
Section 25.8 Abuse of Sick Leave
Both parties are in agreement that after a proper
investigation is conducted and the facts established, that an employee did, in fact, abuse sick leave,
disciplinary action should be taken against such employee. An employee found to be abusing the
sick leave privilege by falsifying information will be subject to disciplinary action including
dismissal. Abuse of sick leave shall also include overuse, which shall be defined as more than five
( 5) occurrences of sick leave use in a twelve-month period, not counting approved sick leave taken in
the event of death in the employee's immediate family.
Section 25. 9 Sick Leave Reciprocity
Each full-time employee with more than one (1) year of
service who works a forty ( 40) hour work schedule shall have the option of receiving payment in
cash for unused sick leave hours at the end of each payroll year, provided such employee was entitled
to sick leave benefits during said payroll year and provided further that the employee was in paid
status, based on the following calculation table.
Sick Leave Used
Durinir Payroll Year (Hours)

Sick Leave Reciprocitv
Cash Payment (Hours)
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0-8
9 - 16
17 - 24
25 - 32
33 or more

40
32

24
16
0

Each eligible full-time employee may elect to receive the Sick Leave Reciprocity Cash
Payment or they may retain their accrued sick leave hours. The number of reciprocity hours paid
each employee will be subtracted from their total accrued sick leave. The remainder of the
employee's unused sick leave shall be carried foIWard each year. The payment shall be made at the
employee's base hourly rate. Payment shall be rendered during the first week of each year, and shall
be separate from regular payroll.
Section 25.10 Tennination of Employment Pav-Out
A.
No payment shall be made for accumulated sick leave at the time of termination of
employment except that a permanent employee with ten (10) or more years of continuous
service with the City may elect at the time of retirement from the City to be paid in cash for
one-third of the value of his accrued but unused sick leave credit. Such payment shall be
based on the employee's rate of pay at the time of retirement. Payment for sick leave on this
basis shall be considered to eliminate all sick leave credit accrued by the employee at that
time. Such payment shall be made only once to any employee. The maximum payment shall
be one-third of 1,500 hours.
B.
In the event an employee dies or is permanently disabled: (1) the ten (10) year service
requirement shall be waived, and (2) in the case of death, payment shall be made to the
estate of the deceased.

ARTICLE26

INJURY LEAVE
Section 26.1 lniurv Leave
Seven (7) consecutive eight_(8) hour days of injury leave for each new
injury (limit of three (3) such leaves per year) will be allowed with pay if an employee is injured as a
direct result of their involvement in an enforcement activity, i.e. undercover work, or if injured as a
result of criminal activity occurring in the Zanesville Safety Center while working in the capacity of
a police employee for the City of Zanesville. Injury leave days do not accumulate year after year.
The employee must make VvTitten request for injury leave and provide a doctor's certificate stating the
nature of the injury.

ARTICLE27
TRAINING AND EDUCATION
Section 27.1 Department Related Training

Employees attending approved training sessions
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will be reimbursed for meals and other expenses, when authorized. Employees who use their private
vehicle to attend approved training sessions will be reimbursed for travel mileage, when authorized.
Reimbursements at the current rates established by City Council. Approved training and education
related to the Police Department's activities shall be paid for by the City of Zanesville. Employees
will be required to take appropriate police-related training or retraining as deemed appropriate by the
Police Chief.
Section 27 .2 Tuition Reimbw-sement Pro12ram
The City shall share tuition reimbursement
expenses with employees interested in attaining a higher level of technical or general competence
through advanced education in such courses as may be determined by the Mayor, upon prior
approval, to relate to the employee's job with the City and based on the City policy.
Section 27.3 Reimbursement Amount
course shall be based on the City policy.

The City's share of the tuition cost of any approved

Section 27.4 Rcpavmcnt of Education Reimbursement Monies Employees who resign from
employment, for reasons other than a disability retirement, within three (3) years after the receipt of
any tuition reimbursement received from the City shall repay such reimbursement to the City.
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ARTICLE 28
DURATION
The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date of execution. This Agreement shall
remain in effect through December 31, 2023,

If either party desires to modify or change this Agreement, it shall give electronic notice to
such effect not later than September I, of the year the contract expires. Negotiations shall then
proceed as specified in The Ohio Revised Code. Upon the delivery of such notice. the pa1ties shall
meet with respect to a new Agreement, sufficiently in advance of the expiration date so as to enable
the parties in their attempts to reach an agreement prior to expiration. This Agreement constitutes
the sole and entire existing written Agreement between the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hand this _ _ _ day of _ _ __
2021.
FOR THE CITY:

FOR THE LABOR COUNCIL:

Don Mason, Mayor

April Roll

Doug Merry, Safety Director

Teresa Hope

Tony Coury, Chief of Police

Tonya Sapp, FOP/OLC General Counsel

David Talbert, Law Director

Kade Haddox, Budget & Finance Director

Jonathan J. Downes, Labor Counsel
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APPENDIX I
FOP RECORDS CLERKS WAGE SCALE
FOR THE YEARS 2021, 2022, & 2023
2021
2022
2023
New Scale
1%
1%
STEP
l
14.68
1
14.39
14.53
I
I
i
2
15.25
15.10
15.40
I
I
l
3
16.06
16.22
15.90
I
Upon signing of the agreement, Dailey, Farmer, and Pierce will be placed at Step 3 ($15 .90) for
the remainder of 2021.
t

STEP
1
2
3

I
I
l
I
l

APPENDIX I
FOP SECRETARIES WAGE SCALE
FOR THE YEARS 2021, 2022, & 2023
2021
2022
New Scale
1%
15.25
15.10
!
I
16.06
15.90
I
16.81
16.64
- I
I

I

2023

1%
!
'j

l

15.40
16.22
16.98

i

''

!'

I

Upon signing of the agreement, Teresa Hope will be placed at Step 2 ($15.90) for the remainder
of 2021.

1%

4%

Roll, Salmons*

18.04
17.86
*Continue to be grandfathered in 4%, 1%, 1%

1%

18.22

Rate increases in 2021 will be effective pay period 20, September 10, 2021.
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the parllcs in their allcmpts 10 reach ,in agreement prior to expiration. This Agreement constilutc~
the sole an<l entire existing \.\Tltlen ,\grccmcnt between the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the panics hereto have set their hand thi:, ___ day or _ _ __

2021 .
FOR Tl IE CITY

-

f-OR TI-IE L/\UOR COUNCIL

- -- -----

Don Muson. Mayor

Doug Merry, Safety Director

Tony Coury. Chief of Poli-.:l:

Danu l"alberl. Lm\ Din:clor

Kade I lnduo~. llu<lg.1:1 &. Finance: Director

Jnn.ithan .I Downes. L.ihur Counsel
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Doug Merry
Public Safety Director

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-108
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
RATIFYING THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH FRATERNAL
ORDER OF POLICE, OHIO LABOR COUNCIL, INC. (POLICE SECRET ARIES AND
RECORDS CLERKS) REGARDING LUMP SUM SIGNING BONUS

WHEREAS, a Memorandum of Understanding (attached hereto and incorporated as
though fully rewritten herein) ("Memorandum") has been agreed to by and between the Fraternal
Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc. (Police Secretaries and Records Clerks)~ and
WHEREAS, City Council must adopt the terms of the Memorandum in order for it to go
into full effect regarding processing of the payment terms incorporated into the Memorandum;
and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 4117 .10 (B), City Council must
approve or reject the proposed agreement within 30 days of its introduction or the agreement will
be deemed approved, making it necessary for this ordinance to be declared an emergency
measure so as to not jeopardize the health, safety, and welfare of our citizens by threatening the
efficient service of the Police Secretaries and Records Clerks.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville,
State of Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: Council hereby ratifies, approves, and adopts Memorandum of
Understanding attached hereto, signed by the Public Safety Director and representatives of
Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc., (Police Secretaries and Records Clerks),
regarding lump sum signing bonus.
SECTION TWO: For the reasons stated above, upon the affirmative votes of six (6) or
more members of Council, this ordinance shall be deemed an emergency and take effect and be
in force immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor. Otherwise, it shall take effect
and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.
PASS ED:

____

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

_,

2021

Daniel Vincent
President of Council

Ordinance No. 2021-108

APPROVED: _ __ _, 2021

This legislation approved as to form:

Donald Mason, Mayor

David Tarbert, City Law Director

Attachment to Ordinance No. 2021-108

Memorandum of Agreement Between
The City of Zanesville

and
The Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc.
for the Police Records Clerks and Secretaries
]'hi: pa1110 n:1.:1:ntl) concluded ncgolitillons for a collective bargaining agreement. In the
n~i;.1111~mnn~ 1hc p.1rtil!:, ,1greed tl, u lll\i:•Lime !>igning bonus. The City agreed 10 provide a one-time

lump sum s1~ntnJ!. b,inus in the following am utull~.
Records Clerks
Secretaries

$1,600.00
$1.200.00

The parties understand that the lump sum signing bonus will be subject to applicable income tax
requirements.
111c City will submit this. Memorandum to City Council for approval. The parties agree and
understand that this Memorandum is a one-lime agreement and docs not create precedent for future
ncgotialions between the parties. •

FOR THE UNION,

'1~)~1JL1-ttff

FOR THE EMPLOYER:

.,oaioa.1

W

~ J < o L L _ ~130-J..0:U

Date:

Date:

Ways and Means Committee
Ann Gildow, Chair

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-98
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CONTRACTS FOR
ADMINISTRATION, NETWORK, MEDICAL MANAGEMENT,
CONSULTATION, AND STOP LOSS INSURANCE SERVICES
RELATED TO THE CITY'S EMPLOYEE HEALTH PLAN
WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville is satisfied with the current third party
administrator of its health insurance plan and desires to continue its contract with Medical
Benefits Administrators of Newark, Ohio beginning December 1, 2021; and
WHEREAS, the renewal contract with Medical Benefits will include contracting
with Quality Care Partners of Zanesville to provide network and medical management services
and will also require entering into a contract to secure stop loss insurance coverage for the health
care plan; and
WHEREAS, the current contracts between the City, its health plan administrator
and consultant, network and medical management services provider, and stop loss coverage
provider will expire on November 30, 2021.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of
Zanesville, Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: The proper city official is authorized for a three-year period
beginning December 1, 2021 and expiring November 30, 2024, to enter into a contract with
Medical Benefits Administrators for consultation purposes and administration of the employee
health care plan.
SECTION TWO: The proper city official is authorized for a three-year period
beginning December 1, 2021 and expiring November 30, 2024, to enter into a contract with
Quality Care Partners for consulting, network and medical management services.
SECTION THREE: The proper city official is authorized for a three-year period
beginning December 1, 2021 and expiring November 30, 2024, to enter into a contract with the
lowest and best option to secure stop loss insurance coverage for the health care plan, as
recommended by the consultants set forth herein.
SECTION FOUR: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after
the earliest period allowed by law.

Ordinance No. 2021-98

PASSED _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ , 2021

ATTEST: - - - - - - - - -- - - Susan Culbertson
Clerk Of Council

APPROVED:

- -- - - -- - -~

Donald L. Mason,
Mayor

Daniel M. Vincent
President Of Council

2021
This legislation approved as to form:

Law Director's Office

PETITION TO ADDRESS COUNCIL
RULES FOR SPEAKING BEFORE ZANESVILLE CITY COUNCIL

Members of the public should understand that Council meetings are not public forums. These meetings are held to conduct City business and
certain portions of the meetings may be deemed to be limited public forums. In a limited public forum, Council has the right to impose reasonable
content-based restrictions as long as the restrictions remain viewpoint neutral. Council can impose reasonable time, place and manner restrictions
to ensure the efficient administration of municipal business. Courts have upheld rules that limit public content to the agenda item at hand do not
violate the First Amendment and that speakers can be cut off for being repetitious or irrelevant as long as they are not targeted because officials
disagree with their views. With that in mind, Council wants to ensure that citizens have a right to express any views that are relevant to the affairs
of the jurisdiction while working to ensure the efficient administration of City business.
Zanesville City Council welcomes, values, and appreciates the varied opinions and comments from members of the public. However, to ensure that
the meetings are respectful, peaceful, and orderly, it is necessary to establish rules to prevent disruption and allow Oty business to be
accomplished in an efficient and productive manner. Members of the public will be permitted to address Council for the purpose of commenting on
legislation being considered by Council and/or for the purpose of commenting regarding City actions or services that the speaker believes should or
should not be taken by Council or issues that should be addressed by Council or the Administration.
Addressing Council shall not be utilized for the following purposes:
1.

To debate or make personal or critical attacks against members of the public or businesses.

2.

To speak in support or opposition of candidates for public office or to announce that a speaker is a candidate for public office.

It is strongly recommended, but not required, that prior to submitting a Petition, the citizen contact their Council Representative (or any Council
Representative) to discuss and possibly resolve the Citizen's concern. This would also provide an opportunity for the Council Representative to act
as an advocate for the Citizen if warranted. For assistance, call the Clerk of Council at 740-617·4875 or email council@caz.org.
Remarks are limited to 3 minutes unless additional time is granted by Council (which shall be granted in 3 minute increments). To extend a
speaker's time, a member of Council shall make a motion to waive this rule and extend the speaker's time by 3 minutes, followed by a second of
the motion, and a majority vote in favor by Council. This time limit shall not apply to Special Guests, Subject Experts, City Employees, Elected
Officials and City Administration who are invited to provide information, reports, or testimony to Council and they are not required to fill out a
Petition to Address Council. Numerous courts have upheld ejections from Council meetings based on speakers going off topic, being unduly
repetitive, yelling, or refusing to stop speaking after their allowed time expired. The 3 minute time limit wilt be strictly enforced.
Speaking before Council is limited to only once for each Communication, Resolution or Ordinance, and only once for a Private Petition/non-Agenda
item per Council meeting. A completed petition is required for each request. All comments must be directed to the President or Council as a body.
The following General Rules of Decorum shall apply to all individuals addressing Council:
1.

Individuals desiring to address Council shall wait to be recognized by the President. After having been recognized, he or she shall
approach the podium, state his or her name and address and then proceed to address Council as a whole and not any individual.

2.

All comments will be made in a courteous and respectful manner by all parties and not in an overly loud or boisterous manner.

3.

No person who addresses Council shall make personal, impolite, repetitive, disrespectful, hostile, disparaging, slanderous, offensive,
threatening, obscene, or profane remarks. Speakers shall not conduct themselves in a manner that disrupts or impedes the orderly
conduct of the meeting or otherwise constitutes disorderly conduct. "Disruption" has been held to include any conduct that violates
generally or specially established rules such that the orderly conduct of the meeting is harmed. The following example has been held to
being disruptive- "speaking too long, by being repetitious, or by extending discussion of irrelevancies."

4.

All comments made by the public shall be made from the speaker's podium. No comments shall be made from any other location (other
than members of Council and the Administration), and anyone making "out of order" comments may be subject to removal.

s.

The President shall have the sole discretion to determine whether or not a speaker's conduct is violating these Rules of Decorum. If in the
President's discretion the rules are being violated, the President may take any action necessary to preserve the due conduct of the
meeting, including but not limited to: (1) verbal warnings; (2) denial or termination of speaking privileges; (3) removal from the meeting;
(4) banning an individual from speaking at future Council and Committee meetings; and (5) request for law enforcement to remove or
arrest the individual (ORC 2917.12). These possible sanctions by the President need not be progressive in nature.

No repetition of remarks shall be permitted nor speaking on the same subject matter will be allowed at more than three meetings, unless there has
been a substantive change to the legislation or situation as determined by the President.
To accommodate special needs or circumstances that are in the best interest of the City, Council may temporarily suspend any of these rules, by
motion, second and 2/3 majority vote (6 votes), which includes the opportunity to address Council without written notice.

lf a speaker does not speak on a matter concerning the legislative or administrative responsibilities of city government, the President may
terminate the right to speak and refer the speaker to more appropriate public forum.
Signs and banners are not permitted in Council Chambers. This prohibition does not apply to charts, diagrams, enlarged photographs, or other
demonstrative exhibits or visual media utilized by a speaker in presenting testimony to Council.
Any variance or waiver of these rules shall be by a 2/3 majority vote (6 votes) of Council.

PETITION TO ADDRESS COUNCIL

IT IS ADVISED THAT YOU READ AND FAMILIARIZE YOURSELF WITH THE ABOVE-LISTED RULES AS WELL AS ALL RULES SET FORTH IN CHAPTER 111
OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE PRIOR TO SPEAKING BEFORE COUNCIL
Those desiring to address Council must complete a "Petition to Address Council.u These Petitions are available in the Clerk's office, online, by email
request, and in Council Chambers. To speak on a non-agenda item, the completed Petition must be provided to the Clerk of Council by noon on
Wednesday the week prior to the Council meeting to be eligible to speak at the meeting. To address Council on an item that is on the agenda, the
Petition must be provided to the Clerk of Council fifteen minutes prior to beginning of the meeting. Council will not consider an incomplete Petition
to Address Council, which requires the following: Name, Organization Representing {if any), Address, Telephone Number, Email Address (optional),
Ordinance/Resolution Number and if For or Against the legislation, and if not speaking on an agenda item list the Subject. Also required is a
Signature and Date to indicate "I Have read the restrictions and guidelines regarding speaking before Council, including those set forth in Chapter
111 of Zanesville's Codified Ordinances. I understand and agree to abide by these rules and acknowledge that my failure to abide by these rules
may result in my request to speak being denied or terminated". It is recommended that any available supporting documentation be submitted with
the Petition to ensure that Council and City Administration have the information necessary to effectively respond to the concern. All documents
submitted to Council become public documents, so please ensure that all personal and private information is redacted (deleted or removed).

NAME:

Beth Ann Ingram

REPRESENTINGAN ORGANIZATION (IF YES, PLEASE LIST):.__,l""'A"""M>=a'-"w=a=rr..,.io=ra""g""a'""in..,st=su=i=ci=de=------------ADDRESS:

3610 Pinecrest Drive. Zanesville. OH 43701

TELEPHONE : 740-452-3024
EMAIL (OPTIONAL) :_...:..;N=o"-"ne=---------------COMMUNICATION/RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE#:_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __

FOR

OR

AGAINST

IF YOU ARE NOT SPEAKING ON AN AGENDA ITEM, YOU MUST INDICATE YOUR SUBJECT BELOW:
To share with our community our website, IAMawarrior.us Ron Bucci has made bumper stickers and we believe if these numbers were everywhere
that these mass shootings going on in the world-may not come to our community. The shooter might call for help or his family might call to get
help for him _or the friend that knows he has a gun might call to get help. These numbers are nationwide and already funded. We also want to bring
to attention of First Responder's death by suicide have increased 80% since 2018, and suicide is the #1 leading cause of death in children 10 years
to 24 years.

I am asking that these bumper stickers be placed on all city vehicles and offices. Also asking if IAMawarrior could be linked to all city offices. I
cannot do this alone. Please help spread hope to our community. United Way had called me prior to the pandemic and Becky Clawson said, "Since
the signs have started to appear that the calls to the nationwide numbers for Muskingum County had doubled." Number one call is for loneliness
and depression, which are leading causes for suicide.
Thank you ahead for your time.

I HAVE READ THE RESTRICTIONS AND GUIDELINES REGARDING SPEAKING BEFORE COUNCIL, INCLUDING THOSE SET FORTH IN CHAPTER 111 OF
ZANESVILLE'S CODIFIED ORDINANCES. I UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ABIDE BY THESE RULES AND ACKNOWLEDGE THAT MY FAILURE TO ABIDE
BY THESE RULES MAY RESULT IN MY REQUEST TO SPEAK BEING DENIED OR TERMINATED.
Beth Ann Ingram signed the original
SIGNATURE

9-22-2021
DATE

